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Special Called Meeting of the 
Board of Directors 

9:00 a.m. 
Tuesday, September 26, 2017 

 
Lowell H. Lebermann, Jr., Board Room 

3300 N. IH-35, Suite 300 
Austin, Texas 78705 

 

 
A live video stream of this meeting may be viewed on the internet at 

www.mobilityauthority.com 

AGENDA 

No action on the following:  

1. Welcome and opening remarks by the Chairman and members of the Board of Directors. 

2. Opportunity for public comment – See Notes at the end of this agenda.    

Regular Items 
Items to discuss, consider, and take appropriate action. 

3. Approve the minutes from the September 6, 2017 Regular Board meeting. 

4. Accept the financial statements for August 2017. 

Executive Session  
Under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, the Board may recess into a closed meeting 
(an executive session) to deliberate any item on this agenda if the Chairman announces the item 
will be deliberated in executive session and identifies the section or sections of Chapter 551 that 
authorize meeting in executive session. A final action, decision, or vote on a matter deliberated in 
executive session will be made only after the Board reconvenes in an open meeting. 
 
The Board may deliberate the following items in executive session if announced by the Chairman: 
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5. Discuss legal issues related to claims by or against the Mobility Authority; pending or 
contemplated litigation and any related settlement offers; or other matters as authorized 
by §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).  

6. Discuss legal issues relating to procurement and financing of Mobility Authority 
transportation projects, as authorized by §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney). 

7. Discuss personnel matters as authorized by §551.074 (Personnel Matters).  

Reconvene in Open Session. 

Regular Items 

Items to discuss, consider, and take appropriate action. 

8. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a proposed settlement of CH2M’s claims 
related to the Mopac Improvement Project. 

Briefings and Reports 

Items for briefing and discussion only. No action will be taken by the Board. 

9. MoPac Improvement Project Update. 

10. Executive Director Report. 

A. Follow up on the diamond lane per Charles Heimsath’s request. 
B. Introduction of new Director of Operations. 

Convene the Audit Committee Meeting 

11. Audit Committee Meeting 

A. Audit Committee meeting called to order by Committee Chairman Singleton. 

B. Introduction of external auditors from RSM US LLP. 

C. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to accept the Fiscal Year 2017 Audit 
Reports. 

D. Adjourn Audit Committee. 
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Regular Items 

Items to discuss, consider, and take appropriate action. 

12. Adjourn Meeting. 

Notes 
Opportunity for Public Comment. At the beginning and at the end of the meeting, the Board provides a period of up to one hour for public 
comment on any matter subject to the Mobility Authority’s jurisdiction. Each speaker is allowed a maximum of three minutes. A person who 
wishes to address the Board should sign the speaker registration sheet before the beginning of the public comment period. If a speaker’s topic is 
not listed on this agenda, the Board may not deliberate the speaker’s topic or question the speaker during the open comment period, but may 
direct staff to investigate the matter or propose that an item be placed on a subsequent agenda for deliberation and possible action by the Board. 
The Board may not deliberate or act on an item that is not listed on this agenda. 
 
Consent Agenda. The Consent Agenda includes routine or recurring items for Board action with a single vote. The Chairman or any Board Member 
may defer action on a Consent Agenda item for discussion and consideration by the Board with the other Regular Items. 
 
Public Comment on Agenda Items. A member of the public may offer comments on a specific agenda item in open session if he or she signs the 
speaker registration sheet for that item before the Board takes up consideration of the item. The Chairman may limit the amount of time allowed 
for each speaker. Public comment unrelated to a specific agenda item must be offered during the open comment period. 
 
Meeting Procedures. The order and numbering of agenda items is for ease of reference only. After the meeting is convened, the Chairman may 
rearrange the order in which agenda items are considered, and the Board may consider items on the agenda in any order or at any time during 
the meeting. 
 
Persons with disabilities. If you plan to attend this meeting and may need auxiliary aids or services, such as an interpreter for those who are deaf  
or hearing impaired, or if you are a reader of large print or Braille, please contact Laura Bohl at (512) 996-9778 at least two days before the 
meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 
Español. Si desea recibir asistencia gratuita para traducir esta información, llame al (512) 996-9778. 
 
Participation by Telephone Conference Call.  One or more members of the Board of Directors may participate in this meeting through a telephone 
conference call, as authorized by Sec. 370.262, Texas Transportation Code (see below). Under that law, each part of the telephone conference 
call meeting law must be open to the public, shall be audible to the public at the meeting location, and will be tape-recorded. On conclusion of 
the meeting, the tape recording of the meeting will be made available to the public. 
 

Sec. 370.262.  MEETINGS BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL. 
(a)  Chapter 551, Government Code, does not prohibit any open or closed meeting of the board, a committee of the board, or the staff, or 
any combination of the board or staff, from being held by telephone conference call. The board may hold an open or closed meeting by 
telephone conference call subject to the requirements of Sections 551.125(c)-(f), Government Code, but is not subject to the requirements 
of Subsection (b) of that section. 
 
(b)  A telephone conference call meeting is subject to the notice requirements applicable to other meetings. 
 
(c)  Notice of a telephone conference call meeting that by law must be open to the public must specify the location of the meeting. The 
location must be a conference room of the authority or other facility in a county of the authority that is accessible to the public. 
 
(d)  Each part of the telephone conference call meeting that by law must be open to the public shall be audible to the public at the location 
specified in the notice and shall be tape-recorded or documented by written minutes. On conclusion of the meeting, the tape recording or 
the written minutes of the meeting shall be made available to the public. 
 

Sec. 551.125.  OTHER GOVERNMENTAL BODY.  (a)  Except as otherwise provided by this subchapter, this chapter does not prohibit a 
governmental body from holding an open or closed meeting by telephone conference call. 

 
(b)  A meeting held by telephone conference call may be held only if: 
(1)  an emergency or public necessity exists within the meaning of Section 551.045 of this chapter; and 
(2)  the convening at one location of a quorum of the governmental body is difficult or impossible; or 
(3)  the meeting is held by an advisory board. 
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(c)  The telephone conference call meeting is subject to the notice requirements applicable to other meetings. 
 
(d)  The notice of the telephone conference call meeting must specify as the location of the meeting the location where meetings of the 
governmental body are usually held. 
 
(e)  Each part of the telephone conference call meeting that is required to be open to the public shall be audible to the public at the location 
specified in the notice of the meeting as the location of the meeting and shall be tape-recorded. The tape recording shall be made available 
to the public. 
 
(f)  The location designated in the notice as the location of the meeting shall provide two-way communication during the entire telephone 
conference call meeting and the identification of each party to the telephone conference shall be clearly stated prior to speaking. 
 

Español. Si desea recibir asistencia gratuita para traducir esta información, llame al (512) 996-9778. 



 

 

September 26, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #1 

Welcome and opening remarks by the 
Chairman and members of the Board of 

Directors 

 

Welcome, Opening Remarks and Board Member Comments 

Board Action Required:   No 

  



 

 

September 26, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #2 

Open Comment Period for Public Comment 
& Public Comment on Agenda Items 

 

 Open Comment Period for Public Comment – At the beginning of the meeting, the 
Board provides a period of up to one hour for public comment on any matter subject to 
CTRMA’s jurisdiction. Each speaker is allowed a maximum of three minutes. A person 
who wishes to address the Board should sign the speaker registration sheet before the 
beginning of the open comment period. If the speaker’s topic is not listed on this agenda, 
the Board may not deliberate the topic or question the speaker during the open comment 
period, but may direct staff to investigate the subject further or propose that an item be 
placed on a subsequent agenda for deliberation and possible action by the Board. The 
Board may not act on an item that is not listed on this agenda. 

Public Comment on Agenda Items – A member of the public may offer comments on a 
specific agenda item in open session if he or she signs the speaker registration sheet for 
that item before the Board’s consideration of the item. The Chairman may limit the 
amount of time allowed for each speaker. Public comment unrelated to a specific agenda 
item must be offered during the open comment period. 

 

Board Action:   None.  

 



 

 

September 26, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #3 

Approve minutes from the September 6, 2017 
Regular Board Meeting 

Strategic Plan Relevance:   Regional Mobility 

Department:     Legal  

Contact:     Geoffrey Petrov, General Counsel  

Associated Costs:     N/A    

Funding Source:   N/A 

Action Requested:   Consider and act on motion to approve minutes 

 

Summary: 

 

 Approve the attached draft minutes for the September 6, 2017 Regular Board 
Meeting. 

 

 

 
Backup provided:  Draft minutes, September 6, 2017 Regular Board Meeting  
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MINUTES 
 

Regular Meeting of the Board of  
 

Directors of the  
 

CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
 

Wednesday, September 6, 2017 
 

 The meeting was held in the Mobility Authority’s Lowell H. Lebermann, Jr. Board Room 
 at 3300 N. Interstate 35, #300, Austin, Texas 78705-1849. Notice of the meeting was 
 posted August 31, 2017 at the respective County Court Houses of Williamson and Travis 
 Counties; online on the website of the Mobility Authority; and in the Mobility 
 Authority’s office lobby at 3300 N. Interstate 35, #300, Austin, Texas 78705-1849.   
 

An archived copy of the live-streamed video of this 
meeting is available at: 

 
https://mobilityauthority.swagit.com/play/09062017-780 

 
1. Welcome and opening remarks by the Chairman and the members of the Board of 

Directors.  
 
After noting that a quorum of the Board was present, Chairman Ray Wilkerson called 
the meeting to order at 9:04 a.m. with the following Board members present: Nikelle 
Meade, David Singleton, Charles Heimsath, David Armbrust, and Mark Ayotte. 
 

2. Opportunity for public comment. 
  
Charley Wilson, Callahan’s General Store President and CEO commended the Mobility 
Authority for its outreach efforts to solicit input from the community and businesses 
along the 183 South Project corridor and for including a turnaround at the intersection 
of Patton and 183 South.  
 
Following public comments, Board member Mark Ayotte discussed his experience 
touring the MSB Call Center Operations and the Traffic Incident Management Center. 

 
 Consent Board Items 

Chairman Ray Wilkerson pulled Item 6 for further discussion before presenting it along 
with Items 3 thru 7 for Board consideration as the consent agenda. 

Justin Word, Director of Engineering, made a presentation regarding Item 6, the change 
order requested by the City of Austin on the Bergstrom Expressway (183 South) Project 

https://mobilityauthority.swagit.com/play/09062017-780
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for betterments to the  City’s wastewater system at Little Walnut Creek. 

Board Member Singleton expressed concern regarding the change order’s impact to the 
project schedule.  Mr. Word indicated that the time impact was considered in light of 
the overall benefits of the change order and that other schedule risks were less of a 
concern at this point in the project. 

Board Member Armbrust confirmed there would be no further time impact from any 
other change orders requested by the City of Austin.  Board Member Heimsath 
confirmed that while the City of Austin will be paying for the change order, all work will 
be performed by CTRMA’s contractor.  Chairman Wilkerson confirmed that the City of 
Austin has already executed the agreement to pay all costs for the City of Austin 
betterments included in the change order.  

With respect to Item 3, financial statements, Chairman Wilkerson noted that the 
Mobility Authority has now exceeded $2 billion in assets on the books.    

Hearing no further comments, Chairman Ray Wilkerson called for a vote on Consent 
Item Nos. 3 thru 7, below: 

 
3.  Accept the financial statements for July 2017. 

ADOPTED AS:    Resolution No. 17-046 
 

4. Approve the procurement of construction engineering and inspection services for the 
Manor Expressway (290E) Phase III Project.  
 
ADOPTED AS:    Resolution No. 17-047 
 

5.  Approve funding for general engineering consulting services to provide oversight for 
the Manor Expressway (290E) Phase III Project.  
 
ADOPTED AS:    Resolution No. 17-048 
 

6. Approve a change order with the Colorado River Constructors and amendments to the 
Interlocal Agreement with the City of Austin for the funding, design and construction of 
City of Austin wastewater betterments at Little Walnut Creek on the Bergstrom 
Expressway (183 South) Project. 
 
ADOPTED AS:    Resolution No. 17-049 
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7. Approve Supplement No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 13 with Kapsch TrafficCom for 
System Integration Services on the Bergstrom Expressway (183 South) Project. 
ADOPTED AS:    Resolution No. 17-050 
 
MOTION:    Approve Item Nos. 3 thru 7 under the consent agenda.   
RESULT:    Approved (Unanimous); 6-0 
MOTION BY:    Nikelle Meade 
SECONDED BY: Charles Heimsath   
AYE:     Wilkerson, Singleton, Meade, Heimsath, Armbrust, Ayotte 
NAY:     None  
 
Regular Board Items 
 

8. Approve the minutes from the July 26, 2017 Regular Board meeting. 
 
MOTION:    Approval for the July 26, 2017 Regular Board meeting minutes. 
 
RESULT:    Approved (Unanimous); 6-0 
MOTION BY:    Nikelle Meade 
SECONDED BY: Charles Heimsath   
AYE:     Wilkerson, Singleton, Meade, Heimsath, Armbrust, Ayotte 
NAY:     None  
 

9. Add the Colorado River Scenic Byway to the Bergstrom Expressway (183 South) Project 
and authorize the Executive Director to obtain required funding through the Capital 
Area Metropolitan Planning Organization and the Texas Department of Transportation. 
 
Justin Word, Director of Engineering presented this item. 
 

 MOTION:  Add the Colorado River Scenic Byway to the Bergstrom Expressway (183  
   South) Project and authorize the Executive Director to obtain required  
   funding through the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization and 
   the Texas Department of Transportation 
 
 RESULT:    Approved (Unanimous); 6-0 
 MOTION BY:    Nikelle Meade  
 SECONDED BY: Charles Heimsath 
 AYE:     Wilkerson, Singleton, Meade, Heimsath, Armbrust, Ayotte 
 NAY:     None 

 
ADOPTED AS:  Resolution No. 17-051 
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10. Approve Amendment Nos. 1 and 2 to the Central United States Interoperability 
Agreement.  
 
Tracie Brown, Toll Operations Manager presented this item.  

 
MOTION:  Approve Amendment Nos. 1 and 2 to the Central United States   
  Interoperability Agreement.  

 
 RESULT:    Approved (Unanimous); 6-0 
 MOTION BY:    David Singleton  
 SECONDED BY: Charles Heimsath 
 AYE:     Wilkerson, Singleton, Meade, Heimsath, Armbrust, Ayotte 
 NAY:     None 
 
 ADOPTED AS:  Resolution No. 17-052 
 
 
11. Approve Supplement No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 10 with Kapsch TrafficCom for 

System Integration Services on the MoPac Improvement Project.  
 

Tracie Brown, Toll Operations Manager presented this item.  
 

MOTION:  Approve Amendment Nos. 1 and 2 to the Central United States   
  Interoperability Agreement.  

 
 RESULT:    Approved (Unanimous); 6-0 
 MOTION BY:    Nikelle Meade 
 SECONDED BY: David Singleton  
 AYE:     Wilkerson, Singleton, Meade, Heimsath, Armbrust, Ayotte 
 NAY:     None 
 
 ADOPTED AS:  Resolution No. 17-053 
 

Briefings and Reports 
 
NOTE: Amy Ellsworth arrived at the dais at 9:45 a.m. and Mr. Wilkerson pointed out that 
the Mobility Authority’s July 2017 Financial Statements lists contingency funds currently 
available. 
 

12. MoPac Improvement Project monthly report. 
 
Steve Pustelnyk, Director of Community Relations and Jeff Dailey, Deputy Executive 
Director presented this item.  
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13. Executive Director Report. 
 

A. Update on Colorado River Constructors Change Order to incorporate 
improvements at the Patton intersection on the Bergstrom Expressway (183 
South) Project.  
 

B. CTRMA Risk Assessment Scorecard. 
 

C. City of Cedar Park’s request for mobility alternatives. 
 

D. 2017 Travis County Bond Package. 
 

E. General Engineering Consultant services procurement. 
 

Mike Heiligenstein, Executive Director presented Item 13. 
 
Executive Session Pursuant to Government Code, Chapter 551 
 
Chairman Wilkerson announced in open session at 10:10 a.m. that the Board would 
recess the meeting and reconvene in Executive Session to deliberate the following 
items: 
 

14. Discuss legal issues related to claims by or against the Mobility Authority; pending or 
contemplated litigation and any related settlement offers; or other matters as 
authorized by §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney). 
 

15. Discuss legal issues relating to procurement and financing of Mobility Authority 
transportation projects, as authorized by §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney). 
 

16. Discuss personnel matters as authorized by §551.074 (Personnel Matters). 
 
After completing the executive session, the Board reconvened in open meeting at 11:25 
a.m.   

  After confirming that no member of the public wished to address the Board, Chairman 
 Wilkerson declared the meeting adjourned at 11:26 a.m.  

17. Adjourn Meeting.  
 
 
 



 

 

September 26, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #4 

Accept the financial statements for August 2017 

Strategic Plan Relevance:   Regional Mobility 

Department:     Finance  

Contact:     Bill Chapman, Chief Financial Officer  

Associated Costs:     N/A    

Funding Source:   N/A 

Action Requested:   Consider and act on draft resolution 

 

Summary: 

 

Presentation and acceptance of the monthly financial statements for August 2017. 

 

 

 

 
Backup provided:  To be provided at the Board Meeting. 
    
  



GENERAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-0XX 
    

ACCEPT THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR AUGUST 2017 
 
WHEREAS, the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (“Mobility Authority”) is 
empowered to procure such goods and services as it deems necessary to assist with its operations 
and to study and develop potential transportation projects, and is responsible to insure accurate 
financial records are maintained using sound and acceptable financial practices; and 
 
WHEREAS, close scrutiny of the Mobility Authority’s expenditures for goods and services, 
including those related to project development, as well as close scrutiny of the Mobility 
Authority’s financial condition and records is the responsibility of the Board and its designees 
through procedures the Board may implement from time to time; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has adopted policies and procedures intended to provide strong fiscal 
oversight and which authorize the Executive Director, working with the Mobility Authority’s 
Chief Financial Officer, to review invoices, approve disbursements, and prepare and maintain 
accurate financial records and reports;  
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Director, working with the Chief Financial Officer, has reviewed and 
authorized the disbursements necessary for the month of August 2017, and has caused Financial 
Statements to be prepared and attached to this resolution as Exhibit A; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors accept the Financial 
Statements for August 2017, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority on the 26th 
day of September 2017. 
 
Submitted and reviewed by:    Approved: 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Geoffrey Petrov, General Counsel   Ray A. Wilkerson 
       Chairman, Board of Directors 
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Budget 
Amount FY 

2018
Actual Year 

to Date

Percent 
of 

Budget
Actual Prior 
Year to Date

REVENUE
Operating Revenue

Toll Revenue - Tags 61,069,539      9,451,795 15.48% 8,331,519 
Video Tolls 14,377,753      2,170,040 15.09% 2,290,877 
Fee Revenue 6,022,247        852,531         14.16% 930,308         

Total Operating Revenue 81,469,539      12,474,367   15.31% 11,552,703   

Other Revenue
Interest Income 950,000           324,458         34.15% 97,233           
Grant Revenue 720,000           137,083         19.04% 3,014,788 
Reimbursed Expenditures 314,280           - - 50,553           
Misc Revenue 5,500                - - - 

Total Other Revenue 1,989,780        461,542         23.20% 3,162,573     

TOTAL REVENUE $83,459,319 $12,935,908 15.50% 14,715,276   

EXPENSES
Salaries and Benefits

Salary Expense-Regular 3,520,456        503,007         14.29% 466,773         
Salary Reserve 80,000              - - - 
TCDRS 515,649           69,834           13.54% 66,097           
FICA 165,251           23,017           13.93% 21,336           
FICA MED 55,277              7,247             13.11% 6,764             
Health Insurance Expense 396,258           56,047           14.14% 72,050           
Life Insurance Expense 32,942              624                 1.89% 692                 
Auto Allowance Expense 10,200              1,700             16.67% 1,700             
Other Benefits 153,197           11,301           7.38% 15,077           
Unemployment Taxes 19,950              3 0.01% - 

Total Salaries and Benefits 4,949,181        672,781         13.59% 650,490         

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Income Statement

For the Period Ending August 31, 2017
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Budget 
Amount FY 

2018
Actual Year 

to Date

Percent 
of 

Budget
Actual Prior 
Year to Date

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Income Statement

For the Period Ending August 31, 2017

Administrative
Administrative and Office Expenses

Accounting 10,000              1,076             10.76% 1,275             
Auditing 100,000           29,500           29.50% -                 
Human Resources 15,000              229                 1.53% 1,656             
IT Services 103,500           18,647           18.02% 10,782           
Internet 4,125                21                   0.52% 365                 
Software Licenses 49,800              9,563             19.20% 14,636           
Cell Phones 18,500              1,255             6.78% 1,597             
Local Telephone Service 2,000                2,451             122.54% 2,542             
Overnight Delivery Services 850                   -                 - 5                     
Local Delivery Services 600                   -                 - -                 
Copy Machine 17,000              2,371             13.95% 2,643             
Repair & Maintenance-General 2,500                131                 5.25% -                 
CommunityMeeting/ Events 2,000                -                 - -                 
Meeting Expense 15,000              890                 5.93% 1,256             
Public Notices 100                   -                 - -                 
Toll Tag Expense 3,150                450                 14.29% 210                 
Parking 4,200                132                 3.14% 173                 
Mileage Reimbursement 11,200              879                 7.85% 329                 
Insurance Expense 150,000           24,641           16.43% 23,843           
Rent Expense 515,000           91,465           17.76% 65,524           
Legal Services 288,000           11,783           4.09% 25                   

Total Administrative and Office Expenses 1,312,525        195,485         14.89% 126,861         

Office Supplies
Books & Publications 6,000                627                 10.45% -                 
Office Supplies 19,900              1,006             5.06% 3,699             
Computer Supplies 46,800              131                 0.28% 2,146             
Copy Supplies 1,000                165                 16.55% 62                   
Other Reports-Printing 8,000                -                 - 430                 
Office Supplies-Printed 1,000                -                 - -                 
Misc Materials & Supplies 2,750                -                 - 982                 
Postage Expense 900                   77                   8.52% 93                   

Total Office Supplies 86,350             2,007             2.32% 7,412             
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Budget 
Amount FY 

2018
Actual Year 

to Date

Percent 
of 

Budget
Actual Prior 
Year to Date

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Income Statement

For the Period Ending August 31, 2017

Communications and Public Relations
Graphic Design Services 35,000              -                 - -                 
Website Maintenance 130,000           -                 - 280                 
Research Services 110,000           -                 - -                 
Communications and Marketing 400,000           23,490           5.87% -                 
Advertising Expense 330,000           27,589           8.36% 6,900             
Direct Mail 10,000              -                 - -                 
Video Production 31,000              84                   0.27% 8,820             
Photography 11,000              -                 - -                 
Radio 10,000              2,893             28.93% -                 
Other Public Relations 20,000              21,588           107.94% -                 
Promotional Items 20,000              -                 - -                 
Displays 5,000                2,124             42.48% -                 
Direct Mail Printing 6,500                -                 - -                 
Other Communication Expenses 50,500              1,011             2.00% 513                 

Total Communications and Public Relations 1,169,000        78,778           6.74% 16,513           

Employee Development
Subscriptions 3,200                351                 10.97% 275                 
Memberships 51,250              2,372             4.63% 2,724             
Continuing Education 10,500              694                 6.60% -                 
Professional Development 4,000                -                 - -                 
Other Licenses 1,750                -                 - -                 
Seminars and Conferences 42,500              6,693             15.75% 5,329             
Travel 97,000              7,768             8.01% 13,476           

Total Employee Development 210,200           17,877           8.50% 21,804           

Financing and Banking Fees
Trustee Fees 30,000              -                 - -                 
Bank Fee Expense 6,500                952                 14.64% 999                 
Continuing Disclosure 10,000              -                 - -                 
Arbitrage Rebate Calculation 8,000                -                 - -                 
Rating Agency Expense 30,000              15,500           51.67% 15,000           

Total Financing and Banking Fees 84,500             16,452           19.47% 15,999           

Total Administrative 2,862,575        310,599         10.85% 188,589         
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Budget 
Amount FY 

2018
Actual Year 

to Date

Percent 
of 

Budget
Actual Prior 
Year to Date

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Income Statement

For the Period Ending August 31, 2017

Operations and Maintenance
Operations and Maintenance Consulting

GEC-Trust Indenture Support 155,000           -                 - -                 
GEC-Financial Planning Support 50,000              -                 - -                 
GEC-Toll Ops Support 20,000              -                 - -                 
GEC-Roadway Ops Support 410,000           -                 - -                 
GEC-Technology Support 60,000              -                 - -                 
GEC-Public Information Support -                    -                 - -                 
GEC-General Support 800,000           1,400             0.18% -                 
General System Consultant 170,000           1,222             0.72% 190                 
Traffic and Revenue Consultant 95,000              -                 - 19,807           

Total Operations and Maintenance Consulting 1,760,000        2,622             0.15% 19,997           

Roadway Operations and Maintenance
Roadway Maintenance 5,007,401        262,450         5.24% 279,869         
Landscape Maintenance 2,500                -                 - -                 
Signal & Illumination Maint 5,000                -                 - -                 
Maintenance Supplies-Roadway 5,500                -                 - 367                 
Tools & Equipment Expense 1,000                -                 - -                 
Gasoline 13,700              1,985             14.49% 947                 
Repair &  Maintenance-Vehicles 5,000                1,300             26.00% 266                 
Electricity - Roadways 200,000           19,419           9.71% 19,379           

Total Roadway Operations and Maintenance 5,240,101        285,155         5.44% 300,828         

Toll Processing and Collection Expense
Image Processing 1,563,594        251,294         16.07% 216,350         
Tag Collection Fees 4,100,826        736,157         17.95% 355,779         
Court Enforcement Costs 40,000              3,275             8.19% 3,300             
DMV Lookup Fees 1,000                88                   8.78% 36                   

Total Processing and Collection Expense 5,705,420        990,813         17.37% 575,465         
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Budget 
Amount FY 

2018
Actual Year 

to Date

Percent 
of 

Budget
Actual Prior 
Year to Date

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Income Statement

For the Period Ending August 31, 2017

Toll Operations Expense
Generator Fuel 5,000                -                 - 19                   
Fire and Burglar Alarm 500                   -                 - -                 
Refuse 1,700                200                 11.75% 229                 
Telecommunications 120,000           12,780           10.65% 13,267           
Water 22,000              1,961             8.91% 3,023             
Electricity 2,500                285                 11.38% 70                   
ETC spare parts expense 20,000              -                 - -                 
Repair & Maintenace Toll Equip 5,000                -                 - -                 
Law Enforcement 275,000           22,857           8.31% 22,857           
ETC Maintenance Contract 1,755,098        -                 - -                 
ETC Toll Management Center System Operation 294,588           -                 - -                 
ETC Development 500,000           -                 - -                 
ETC Testing 25,000              -                 - -                 

Total Toll Operations Expense 3,026,386        38,082           1.26% 39,465           

Total Operations and Maintenance 15,731,907      1,316,672     8.37% 935,755         

Other Expenses
Special Projects and Contingencies

HERO 720,000           112,340         15.60% 198                 
Special Projects 113,000           -                 - 12,027           
Other Contractual Svcs 2,430,600        11,333           0.47% 4,000             
Contingency 250,000           -                 - -                 

Total Special Projects and Contingencies 3,513,600        123,673         3.52% 16,225           
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Budget 
Amount FY 

2018
Actual Year 

to Date

Percent 
of 

Budget
Actual Prior 
Year to Date

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Income Statement

For the Period Ending August 31, 2017

Non Cash Expenses
Amortization Expense 385,000           83,812           21.77% 63,872           
Amort Expense - Refund Savings 1,034,000        172,196         16.65% 171,753         
Dep Exp- Furniture & Fixtures 2,620                436                 16.63% 368                 
Dep Expense - Equipment 16,050              2,671             16.64% 2,143             
Dep Expense - Autos & Trucks 19,312              2,779             14.39% 1,068             
Dep Expense-Buildng & Toll Fac 177,115           29,519           16.67% 29,519           
Dep Expense-Highways & Bridges 18,048,333      2,933,416     16.25% 2,911,869     
Dep Expense-Communic Equip 196,115           -                 - 32,686           
Dep Expense-Toll Equipment 2,756,238        397,913         14.44% 459,373         
Dep Expense - Signs 325,900           54,316           16.67% 54,316           
Dep Expense-Land Improvemts 884,934           147,489         16.67% 147,489         
Depreciation Expense-Computers 13,210              2,201             16.66% 2,701             

Total Non Cash Expenses 23,858,827      3,826,748     16.04% 3,877,156     

Total Other Expenses 27,372,427      3,950,421     14.43% 3,893,381     

Non Operating Expenses
Bond issuance expense 1,450,000        37,792           2.61% 970,621         
Interest Expense 38,074,354      5,223,429     13.72% 5,363,567     
Community Initiatives 100,000           5,000             5.00% 5,000             

Total Non Operating Expenses 39,624,354      5,266,221     13.29% 6,339,189     

TOTAL EXPENSES $90,540,444 $11,516,693 12.72% $12,007,404

Net Income ($7,081,125) $1,419,215 2,707,873     
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Current Assets
Cash

Regions Operating Account 656,058$          753,203$          
Cash in TexStar 207,062            683,155            
Regions Payroll Account 197,150            171,124            
Restricted Cash
Goldman Sachs FSGF 465 168,346,312     248,556,922     
Restricted Cash - TexSTAR 168,067,986     71,120,275       
Overpayments account 173,962            140,376            
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 337,648,529           321,425,055           

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable -                     14,485               
Due From Other Agencies -                     6,717,549         
Due From TTA 3,368,999         836,931            
Due From NTTA 773,317            427,015            
Due From HCTRA 1,337,051         837,780            
Due From TxDOT 11,826,775       82,995,791       
Interest Receivable 432,091            619,195            
Total Receivables 17,738,234             92,448,745             

Short Term Investments
Agencies 93,529,307       204,826,635     
Total Short Term Investments 93,529,307             204,826,635           

Total Current Assets 448,916,070 618,700,435

Total Construction in Progress 577,195,344           343,692,867           

Fixed Assets (Net of Depreciation and Amortization)
Computer 24,364               37,571               
Computer Software 1,288,019         1,084,076         
Furniture and Fixtures 14,811               14,716               
Equipment 33,457               10,836               
Autos and Trucks 74,247               19,753               
Buildings and Toll Facilities 5,261,019         5,438,134         
Highways and Bridges 761,586,241     610,825,948     
Communication Equipment -                     185,736            
Toll Equipment 15,592,082       16,797,322       
Signs 10,876,147       11,202,040       
Land Improvements 10,476,450       11,361,384       
Right of way 88,148,106       86,849,829       
Leasehold Improvements 145,722            158,774            
Total Fixed Assets 893,520,666           743,986,119           

Other Assets
Intangible Assets-Net 104,354,239     103,186,941     
2005 Bond Insurance Costs 4,465,881         4,679,389         
Prepaid Insurance 13,358               11,340               
Deferred Outflows (pension related) 711,563            780,064            
Pension Asset 355,139            202,023            
Total Other Assets 109,900,179           108,859,757           

Total Assets 2,029,532,260$      1,815,239,178$      

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Balance Sheet

as of August 31, 2017

as of 08/31/2017 as of 08/31/2016
ASSETS
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Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Balance Sheet

as of August 31, 2017

as of 08/31/2017 as of 08/31/2016

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable (199,487)$         514,889$          
Construction Payable 18,711               690,734            
Overpayments 176,583            142,690            
Interest Payable 8,663,442         8,864,683         
Deferred Compensation Payable (10,689)             (8,961)               
TCDRS Payable 53,962               50,414               
Medical Reimbursement Payable (1,729)               (2,060)               
Due to other Agencies 348                    -                     
Due to TTA 703,419            -                     
Due to NTTA 122,851            -                     
Due to HCTRA 104,314            -                     
Due to Other Entities 5,678,468         681,636            
71E TxDOT Obligation - ST 650,998            -                     

Total Current Liabilities 15,961,190             10,934,026             

Long Term Liabilities
Compensated Absences 182,441            138,927            
Deferred Inflows (pension related) 286,449            172,017            
Long Term Payables 468,891                   310,944                   
Bonds Payable
Senior Lien Revenue Bonds:
Senior Lien Revenue Bonds 2010 69,650,843       65,263,877       
Senior Lien Revenue Bonds 2011 14,649,938       13,708,203       
Senior Refunding Bonds 2013 143,685,000     147,880,000     
Senior Lien Revenue Bonds 2015 298,790,000     298,790,000     
Senior Lien Put Bnd 2015 68,785,000       68,785,000       
Senior Lien Refunding Revenue Bonds 2016 358,030,000     358,030,000     
Sn Lien Rev Bnd Prem/Disc 2013 9,699,312         11,704,472       
Sn Lien Revenue Bnd  Prem 2015 21,774,436       22,970,941       
Sn Lien Put Bnd Prem 2015 5,278,910         7,142,214         
Senior lien premium 2016 revenue bonds 55,297,842       59,618,091       
Total Senior Lien Revenue Bonds 1,045,641,281        1,053,892,798        

Sub Lien Revenue Bonds:
Sub Refunding Bnds 2013 101,530,000     102,030,000     
Sub Debt Refunding Bonds 2016 74,690,000       74,690,000       
Sub Refunding 2013 Prem/Disc 2,242,484         2,732,654         
Sub Refunding 2016 Prem/Disc 9,878,652         10,754,028       
Total Sub Lien Revenue Bonds 188,341,136           190,206,681           

Other Obligations
TIFIA note 2015 52,800               51,394               
SIB loan 2015 30,722,402       19,751,432       
State Highway Fund Loan 2015 30,722,402       19,751,432       
2013 American Bank Loan 3,570,000         5,300,000         
71E TxDOT Obligation - LT 65,000,000       -                     
Total Other Obligations 130,067,605           44,854,257             

Total Long Term Liabilities 1,364,518,913        1,289,264,681        
Total Liabilities 1,380,480,103        1,300,198,707        

Contributed Capital 136,725,550           35,847,060             
Net Assets Beginning 510,907,392           476,485,538           
Current Year Operations 1,419,215                2,707,873                
Total Net Assets 649,052,157           515,040,471           

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 2,029,532,260$      1,815,239,178$      

LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from toll fees 10,097,152$                
Receipts from interest income (106,563)                      
Payments to vendors (4,238,898)                   
Payments to employees (687,881)                      

Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities 5,063,811                    

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from notes payable 407,368                       
Refunding of bonds 138,384                       
Receipts from Department of Transportation 2,294,211                    
Interest payments (26,236,634)                 
Acquisition of capital assets (23,415)                        
Acquisitions of construction in progress (47,974,464)                 

Net cash flows provided by (used in) capital and (71,394,550)                 
related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income 717,812                       
Purchase of investments (6,359,290)                   
Proceeds from sale or maturity of investments 40,084,926                  

Net cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities 34,443,448                  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (31,887,291)                 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 201,260,772                
Cash and cash equivalents at end of August 169,373,481$              

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income 6,391,091$                  
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,654,552                    
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (2,485,902)                   
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets 24,641                         
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable (1,933,185)                   
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses (587,386)                      

Total adjustments (1,327,280)                   

Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities 5,063,811$                  

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents:

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 1,027,169$                  
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 168,346,312                

Total 169,373,481$              

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
Statement of Cash Flow

as of August 31, 2017
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Balance
August 31, 2017

Renewal & Replacement Fund TexSTAR 168,275,048.00        
TexSTAR 507,033.79             Goldman Sachs 168,326,465.82        
Goldman Sachs 189,180.86             Agencies & Treasury Notes 93,529,307.22          
Agencies 696,214.65                       

Grant Fund 430,130,821.04$  
TexSTAR 9,124,575.95          
Goldman Sachs 476,700.66              
Agencies 9,601,276.61                    

Senior Debt Service Reserve Fund 
TexSTAR 15,082,373.05        
Goldman Sachs 25,256,429.64        
Agencies 39,928,412.93        80,267,215.62                  

2010 Senior Lien DSF
Goldman Sachs 178,662.91             
TexSTAR -                         178,662.91                       

2011 Debt Service Acct
Goldman Sachs 753,515.22             753,515.22                       

2013 Sr Debt Service Acct
Goldman Sachs 3,738,745.66          3,738,745.66                    

2013 Sub Debt Service Account
Goldman Sachs 1,516,786.76          6,550,725.46                    
TexSTAR 5,033,938.70          

2015 Sr Capitalized Interest
Goldman Sachs 3,150,740.20          53,469,661.92                  
TexSTAR 50,318,921.72        

2015A Debt Service Account
Goldman Sachs 3.30                       3.30                                 

2015B Debt Service Account
Goldman Sachs 575,300.85             575,300.85                       

2016 Sr Lien Rev Refunding Debt Service Account
Goldman Sachs 5,259,223.51          5,259,223.51                    

2016 Sub Lien Rev Refunding Debt Service Account
Goldman Sachs 821,439.66             5,817,689.66                    
Agencies 4,996,250.00          

2016 Sub Lein Rev Refunding DSR
Goldman Sachs 1,656,119.28          1,656,119.28                    

 Operating Fund
TexSTAR 207,062.23             
TexSTAR-Trustee 2,501,966.32          
Goldman Sachs -                         2,709,028.55                    

Revenue Fund
Goldman Sachs 3,064,174.74          3,064,174.74                    

General Fund
TexSTAR 25,170,619.17        
Goldman Sachs 8,768,691.01          
Agencies 4,403,465.00          38,342,775.18                  

2013 Sub Debt Service Reserve Fund
Goldman Sachs 3,484,087.54          
Agencies 3,484,087.54

71E Revenue Fund
Goldman Sachs 797,247.64             797,247.64

MoPac Revenue Fund
Goldman Sachs 145,757.73             145,757.73

MoPac Construction Fund
Goldman Sachs 33,981,800.23        33,981,800.23

2015B Project Account
Goldman Sachs 5,056,945.00
Agencies 20,146,322.94 40,298,944.55
TexSTAR 15,095,676.61

2015A Project Account
TexSTAR 19,131,895.07
Goldman Sachs 15,605,370.16
Agencies 24,054,856.35
Treasury Notes 58,792,121.58

2015 TIFIA Project Account
Goldman Sachs 50,436.74 50,436.74

2015 State Highway Fund Project Account
Goldman Sachs 29,679,084.09 29,679,084.09

2015 SIB Project Account
Goldman Sachs 19,787,503.57 19,787,503.57

2011 Sr Financial Assistance Fund
Goldman Sachs 1,000.04 23,093,337.39
TexSTAR 23,092,337.35

183S Utility Custody Deposit
Goldman Sachs 1,412,702.93
TexSTAR 3,008,648.04 4,421,350.97

RIF
Goldman Sachs 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00

45SW Trust Account Hays County
Goldman Sachs 3.36 3.36

45SW Trust Account Travis County
Goldman Sachs 918,812.53 918,812.53 -$                         

430,130,821.04$          

INVESTMENTS by FUND
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  CTRMA  INVESTMENT REPORT  
 
  
 Balance Discount Balance  Rate 
 8/1/2017 Additions Amortization Accrued Interest Withdrawals 8/31/2017 August

  
Amount in Trustee TexStar

2011 Sr Lien Financial Assist Fund 23,072,069.27 20,268.08 23,092,337.35 1.034%
2013 Sub Lien Debt Service Reserve 5,029,520.41 4,418.29 5,033,938.70 1.034%
General Fund 25,148,526.98 22,092.19 25,170,619.17 1.034%

 Trustee Operating Fund 1,941,173.60 1,658,896.64 1,896.08 1,100,000.00 2,501,966.32 1.034%
Renewal and Replacement 506,588.75 445.04 507,033.79 1.034%
Grant Fund 9,116,567.32 8,008.63 9,124,575.95 1.034%
Senior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund 15,069,135.29 13,237.76 15,082,373.05 1.034%
183S Utility Custody Deposit 3,006,007.39 2,640.65 3,008,648.04 1.034%
2015A Sr Ln Project Account 19,115,103.06 16,792.01 19,131,895.07 1.034%
2015A Sr Ln Project Cap Interest 50,274,756.95 44,164.77 50,318,921.72 1.034%
2015B Sr Ln Project 15,082,427.18 13,249.43 15,095,676.61 1.034%

167,361,876.20 1,658,896.64 147,212.93 1,100,000.00 168,067,985.77

Amount in TexStar Operating Fund 606,518.61 1,100,000.00 543.62 1,500,000.00 207,062.23 1.034%
   

Goldman Sachs
Operating Fund 26,046.00 1,632,850.00 0.64 1,658,896.64 0.00 0.280%
45SW Trust Account Travis County 918,136.96 675.57 918,812.53 0.280%
45SW Trust Account Hays County 0.00 3.36 0.00 3.36 0.280%
2015A Project Account 36,056,003.20 7,054,474.20 27,176.60 27,532,283.84 15,605,370.16 0.280%
2015B Project Account 5,053,226.79 3,718.21 5,056,945.00 0.280%
2015D State Highway Fund Project Acct 29,657,261.99 21,822.10 29,679,084.09 0.280%
2015C TIFIA Project Account 50,399.66 37.08 50,436.74 0.280%
2015E SIB Project Account 19,772,954.44 14,549.13 19,787,503.57 0.280%
183S Utility Custody Deposit 2,380,382.99 1,751.50 969,431.56 1,412,702.93 0.280%
2011 Sr Financial Assistance Fund 931.51 68.53 1,000.04 0.280%
2010 Senior DSF 161,720.44 16,818.41 124.06 178,662.91 0.280%
2011 Senior Lien Debt Service Acct 752,961.18 554.04 753,515.22 0.280%
2013 Senior Lien Debt Service Acct 2,823,024.95 913,820.01 1,900.70 3,738,745.66 0.280%
2013 Subordinate Debt Service Acct 1,010,581.63 505,533.68 671.45 1,516,786.76 0.280%
2015 Sr Capitalized Interest 3,148,078.12 2,662.08 3,150,740.20 0.280%
2015 Sr Capitalized Interest pmt acct 0.00 0.00 0.280%
2015A Debt Service Acct 3.30 3.30 0.280%
2015B Debt Service Acct 288,988.69 286,127.26 184.90 575,300.85 0.280%
2016 Sr Lien Rev Refunding Debt Service Account 4,389,466.70 866,610.41 3,146.40 5,259,223.51 0.280%
2016 Sub Lien Rev Refunding Debt Service Account 508,360.72 312,744.11 334.83 821,439.66 0.280%
2016 Sub Lein Rev Refunding DSR 1,654,901.61 1,217.67 1,656,119.28 0.280%
RIF 0.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 2,000,000.00 0.280%
Grant Fund 476,350.16 350.50 476,700.66 0.280%
Renewal and Replacement 189,041.76 139.10 189,180.86 0.280%
Revenue Fund 2,519,723.72 5,841,760.91 1,965.27 5,299,275.16 3,064,174.74 0.280%
General Fund 17,878,584.08 305,061.10 14,632.28 9,429,586.45 8,768,691.01 0.280%
Senior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund 25,249,668.93 6,760.71 25,256,429.64 0.280%
MoPac Revenue Fund 140,223.89 5,433.92 99.92 145,757.73 0.280%
71E Revenue Fund 720,597.22 76,166.14 484.28 797,247.64 0.280%
2013 Sub Debt Service Reserve Fund 3,481,525.80 2,561.74 3,484,087.54 0.280%
MoPac Managed Lane Construction Fund 37,006,931.18 614,894.29 27,288.95 3,667,314.19 33,981,800.23 0.280%

196,316,077.62 20,432,294.44 0.00 134,881.60  168,326,465.82

Amount in Fed Agencies and Treasuries
Amortized Principal 100,550,000.84 (20,693.62) 7,000,000.00 93,529,307.22

100,550,000.84 0.00 (20,693.62) 0.00 7,000,000.00 93,529,307.22

Certificates of Deposit 0.00
Total in Pools 167,968,394.81 2,758,896.64 147,756.55 2,600,000.00 168,275,048.00
Total in GS FSGF 196,316,077.62 20,432,294.44 134,881.60  168,326,465.82
Total in Fed Agencies and Treasuries 100,550,000.84 0.00 (20,693.62) 7,000,000.00 93,529,307.22

Total Invested 464,834,473.27 23,191,191.08 (20,693.62) 282,638.15 9,600,000.00 430,130,821.04

All Investments in the portfollio are in compliance with the CTRMA's Investment policy. William Chapman, CFO
Mary Temple, Controller

Month Ending 8/31/17
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39%

39%

22%

Allocation of Funds

Total in Pools

Total in Money Market

Total in Fed Agencies

Total in CD's
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         Amount of  Investments As of August 31, 2017

Agency CUSIP # COST Book Value Market Value Yield to Maturity Purchased Matures
Federal Farm Credit 3133ECA79 4,959,250.00      4,992,076.39          4,993,350.00           1.2155% 3/11/2015 3/19/2018 Senior DSRF
Federal Farm Credit 3133EFSG3 10,057,749.23    10,015,956.86        9,995,500.00           0.8421% 2/8/2016 3/14/2018 2015B Sr Project 
Federal Home loan Bank 313378QK0 10,253,642.07    10,130,366.08        10,077,100.00         1.0369% 2/8/2016 3/8/2019 2015B Sr Project 
Freddie Mac 3134G4Z84 9,850,343.91      9,804,856.35          9,804,018.00           0.8097% 2/18/2016 10/10/2017 2015A Sr Project 
Federal Home loan Bank 3030A62S5 Matured Matured Matured 0.9053% 3/14/2016 8/28/2017 2015A Sr Project 
Federal Home loan Bank 303370SZ2 14,536,023.18    14,250,000.00        14,253,420.00         0.9023% 3/7/2016 9/8/2017 2015A Sr Project 
Federal Home loan Bank 3030A6SW8 10,039,900.00    10,007,875.00        9,997,700.00           0.7616% 4/11/2016 12/19/2017 Senior DSRF
Federal Home loan Bank 3130A8BD4 24,907,000.00    24,928,461.54        24,925,750.00         1.2288% 6/7/2017 6/29/2018 Senior DSRF
Federal Home loan Bank 3130ABJD9 4,995,000.00      4,996,250.00          4,996,800.00           1.2265% 6/7/2017 6/5/2018 2016 Sub DSRF
Federal Home loan Bank 3030A6SW8 4,417,556.00      4,403,465.00          4,398,988.00           0.7616% 4/11/2016 12/19/2017 General

94,016,464.39    93,529,307.22        93,442,626.00         

 

Cummulative 8/31/2017 August 31, 2017
Agency CUSIP # COST Amortization Book Value Maturity Value Accrued Interest Amortization Interest Earned

Federal Farm Credit 3133ECA79 4,959,250.00      (32,826.39)              4,992,076.39           5,000,000.00       3,916.67 1,131.94 5,048.61
Federal Farm Credit 3133EFSG3 10,057,749.23    41,792.37               10,015,956.86         10,000,000.00     9,166.67 (2,279.58) 6,887.09
Federal Home loan Bank 313378QK0 10,253,642.07    123,275.99             10,130,366.08         10,000,000.00     15,625.00 (6,861.37) 8,763.63
Freddie Mac 3134G4Z84 9,850,343.91      45,487.56               9,804,856.35           9,800,000.00       9,187.50 (2,428.16) 6,759.34
Federal Home loan Bank 3030A62S5 Matured Matured Matured 7,000,000.00       4,375.00 898.23 5,273.23
Federal Home loan Bank 303370SZ2 14,536,023.18    286,023.18             14,250,000.00         14,250,000.00     26,718.75 (15,890.18) 10,828.57
Federal Home loan Bank 3030A6SW8 10,039,900.00    32,025.00               10,007,875.00         10,000,000.00     8,333.33 (1,968.75) 6,364.58
Federal Home loan Bank 3130A8BD4 24,907,000.00    (21,461.54)              24,928,461.54         25,000,000.00     20,521.91 7,153.85 27,675.76
Federal Home loan Bank 3130ABJD9 4,995,000.00      (1,250.00)                4,996,250.00           5,000,000.00       4,687.50 416.67 5,104.17
Federal Home loan Bank 3030A6SW8 4,417,556.00      14,091.00               4,403,465.00           4,400,000.00       3,666.67 (866.25) 2,800.42

94,016,464.39    487,157.17             93,529,307.22         100,450,000.00   106,199.00       (20,693.62)            85,505.40                 

FUND

Interest Income 
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 Certificates of Deposit Outstanding
Yield to August 31, 2017

Bank CUSIP # COST Maturity Purchased Matures Interest FUND

-                     -$                         

Travis County Escrow account
Balance Accrued Balance
8/1/2017 Additions Interest Withdrawls 8/31/2017

71,045.46$            98.97$         52,298.31$       18,846.12$          

August 31, 2017
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183 South Design‐Build Project
Contingency Status
September 30, 2017

Total Project Contingency $47,860,000

CO#1 City of Austin ILA Adjustment ($2,779,934)

CO#2 Addition of Coping to Soil Nail Walls $742,385

CO#4 Greenroads Implementation $362,280

CO#6 51st Street Parking Trailhead $477,583

CO#9 Patton Interchange Revisions $3,488,230

Others Less than $300,000 (4) ($45,957)

Executed Change Orders $2,244,587

Change Orders Under Negotiation $2,150,000

Potential Contractual Obligations $10,600,000

(‐) Total Obligations $14,994,587

Remaining Project Contingency $32,865,413

Original Construction Contract Value:  $581,545,700

O
b
lig
at
io
n
s
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SH 45SW Construction
Contingency Status
September 30, 2017

7,520,000.00$     

CO #01 Asbestos Removal $1,962
CO #02 TCEQ Protection Plan $103,773
CO #03 Conduit Installation Revision ($11,970)
CO #04 Installation of PEC and TWC Conduits $458,439
CO #05 Installation of SSTR Drilled Shafts and Moment Slab $538,945
CO #06 Feature 004 Protection and Bridge Drain Assembly $2,932
CO #07 Traffic Control Savings and Removal of Mulch ($5,560)
Executed Change Orders $1,088,522

$0

$5,382,961

(‐) Total Obligations 6,471,483$         

1,048,517$         

Original Construction Contract Value:  $75,103,623

Total Project Contingency

O
b
lig
at
io
n
s

Change Orders in Negotiations

Potential Contractual Obligations

Remaining Project Contingency
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MOPAC Construction
Contingency Status
September 30, 2017

18,527,575$        

CO#01B 5th & Cesar Chavez SB Reconfig (Construction) $593,031

CO#05B FM 2222 Bridge NB Ret Wall Abutment Repair (Construction) $850,000

CO#07 FM 2222 Exit Storage Lane $426,000

CO#08C Refuge Area: Added Shoulder Adjustment Soundwall #1 $2,508,548

CO#12 Barrier Rail Opaque Seal $542,419

CO#17 Bike and Ped Improvements at Far West Blvd Bridge/RM 2222 $971,889

CO#34 Undercrossing Fire Protection $1,412,574

CO#35 TxDOT Duct Bank $1,357,196

Total of Others Less than $300,000 (20) $1,073,504

Executed Change Orders $9,735,160

(2,501,437)$             

28,103,582$            

35,337,305$        

20,000,000$        

3,190,270$          Remaining Project Contingency

(+) Assessed Liquidated Damages

(‐) Total Obligations

Current and Potential Contractual Obligations

Change Orders in Progress

Original Construction Contract Value:  $136,632,100

Total Project Contingency

O
b
lig
at
io
n
s
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Monthly Newsletter — August 2017

For more information about TexSTAR, please visit our web site at www.texstar.org.

Performance

As of August 31, 2017
Current Invested Balance $5,770,863,631.13
Weighted Average Maturity (1)   28 Days
Weighted Average Maturity (2) 93 Days
Net Asset Value 1.000014
Total Number of Participants 846
Management Fee on Invested Balance 0.06%*
Interest Distributed $5,347,551.21
Management Fee Collected $293,217.39
% of Portfolio Invested Beyond 1 Year 6.79%
Standard & Poor’s Current Rating AAAm
Rates reflect historical information and are not an indication of future performance.

August Averages
Average Invested Balance $5,754,122,546.38
Average Monthly Yield, on a simple basis 1.0343%
Average Weighted Average Maturity (1)* 33 Days
Average Weighted Average Maturity (2)* 102 Days

Definition of Weighted Average Maturity (1) & (2)

(1) This weighted average maturity calculation uses the SEC Rule 2a-7 defi nition for stated 
maturity for any fl oating rate instrument held in the portfolio to determine the weighted 
average maturity for the pool. This Rule specifi es that a variable rate instrument to be 
paid in 397 calendar days or less shall be deemed to have a maturity equal to the period 
remaining until the next readjustment of the interest rate. 

(2) This weighted average maturity calculation uses the fi nal maturity of any fl oating rate 
instruments held in the portfolio to calculate the weighted average maturity for the pool.

     * The maximum management fee authorized for the TexSTAR Cash Reserve Fund is 12 
basis points.  This fee may be waived in full or in part in the discretion of the TexSTAR

       co-administrators at any time as provided for in the TexSTAR Information Statement.

Economic Commentary
In August, markets reacted to geopolitical tensions with North Korea, the terror attack in Spain, and Hurricane Harvey that hit 
the Gulf coast – home to many large U.S. oil refi ners/producers. Investors piled into safe haven assets causing treasury yields 
to rally. Gold rallied and hit the year high of $1,321/oz.  Second quarter GDP was revised up from 2.6% to 3.0% while global 
growth expanded at the fastest pace in seven years and the growth backdrop in the U.S. continues to look solid in the second 
half of 2017. Business and consumer confi dence remains elevated and in some cases has re-accelerated in the past few months. 
It would also suggest that if we do get any clarity on fi scal or tax policy, confi dence could move even higher. 

Government spending is unlikely to impact growth materially in 2017 as new legislation on spending and tax reform is not expected 
until fall, at the earliest. Before this legislation can move forward, the congress will need to agree on a resolution for the debt 
ceiling. We view the probability of a default as unlikely. The odds of a shutdown or debt ceiling breach look to have declined now 
that congress must fi nd a way to pass legislation to provide funding for Hurricane Harvey victims.  We do foresee some type of 
tax reform or relief to occur in late 2017 or early 2018 as well as a continued push towards deregulation once Randal Quarles 
is confi rmed as the Vice Chair of Supervision at the Fed. 

In terms of the timing for the next federal funds rate increase, the committee has indicated that their objective is to continue to 
keep the pace of rate hikes “gradual”. The median of the committee expects 1 additional rate hike in 2017 and 3 rate hikes in 
2018.  An additional rate hike in 2017 will be dependent on infl ation data which has disappointed and kept the Fed cautious despite 
fi nancial conditions remaining very easy. For 2017, the market’s expectation of an additional rate hike is waning and for 2018, 
the market is only pricing in about one and half rate hikes. Prior to the next rate hike, the committee appears very determined to 
start the balance sheet normalization process as soon as the September meeting. Looking beyond 2017, Presidential Trump has 
the ability to make big changes on the committee by fi lling two more open positions on the Board of Governors. Most important 
will be who takes over when Chair Yellen’s term is complete in February 2018. 

This information is an excerpt from an economic report dated August 2017 provided to TexSTAR by JP Morgan Asset Management, Inc., the investment manager of the TexSTAR pool.

New Participants
We would like to welcome the following entities who joined the TexSTAR program in August: 

El Paso Education Initiative               Spring ISD
          

Holiday Reminder
In observance of Columbus Day, TexSTAR will be closed on Monday, October 9, 2017.  All ACH transactions initiated on Friday, 
October 6th, will settle on Tuesday October 10th. Please plan accordingly for your liquidity needs.          
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Distribution of 
Participants by Type

As of August 31, 2017

Portfolio by 
Type of Investment

As of August 31, 2017

                                                          Book Value                 Market Value

 Uninvested Balance $       (9,745.16)  $     (9,745.16)
 Accrual of Interest Income 4,576,007.23 4,576,007.23
 Interest and Management Fees Payable (5,380,281.17) (5,380,281.17)
 Payable for Investment Purchased 0.00 0.00  
 Repurchase Agreement 1,397,995,999.74 1,397,995,999.74
 Government Securities 4,373,681,650.49 4,373,763,805.51

 Total  $ 5,770,863,631.13  $ 5,770,945,786.15

Market value of collateral supporting the Repurchase Agreements is at least 102% of the Book Value.  The portfolio is managed by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. and the assets are safekept 
in a separate custodial account at the Federal Reserve Bank in the name of TexSTAR.  The only source of payment to the Participants are the assets of TexSTAR.  There is 
no secondary source of payment for the pool such as insurance or guarantee.  Should you require a copy of the portfolio, please contact TexSTAR Participant Services.

Information at a Glance

Portfolio Asset Summary as of August 31, 2017

   Average Book Market  Net   Number of 
 Month Rate Value Value  Asset Value WAM (1)* WAM (2)* Participants
          
    Aug 17 1.0343%  $5,770,863,631.13 $5,770,945,786.15   1.000014 33 102 846  
     Jul  17 0.9827%  5,941,902,116.09 5,941,981,984.60   1.000013 32 97 844  
    Jun  17 0.8631%  6,071,512,305.56 6,071,586,949.16   0.999993 30 92 838 
   May 17 0.7535%  6,440,388,492.41 6,440,492,333.25   1.000016 28 97 836 
    Apr 17 0.7140%  6,279,219,607.16 6,279,507,477.47   1.000045 36 105 832 
   Mar 17 0.6269%  6,551,167,144.50 6,551,621,726.22   1.000064 42 110 829  
     Feb 17 0.5533%  7,267,565,993.07 7,269,212,259.58   1.000226 43 111 827 
    Jan 17 0.5452%   7,011,113,225.83 7,012,695,761.41   1.000225 44 96 823  
   Dec 16 0.4815%  6,128,094,216.46 6,129,417,408.96   1.000215 49 100 822
   Nov  16 0.4144%  5,250,402,124.93  5,251,596,034.74   1.000227 47 109 821 
    Oct 16 0.4202%  5,155,508,603.07 5,157,927,996.01   1.000469 39 105 820 
    Sep 16 0.4123%  5,253,367,191.87 5,255,503,092.88   1.000412 43 115 818  

Agencies
46.16%

1 to 7 days
35.72%

31 to 90 days
42.60% 8 to 30 days

20.67%

City
26.36%

Health Care
3.07%

County
6.15%

Other
7.56%

Historical Program Information

181+ days
0.00%

Portfolio by 
Maturity

As of August 31, 2017

Repurchase
Agreements

24.22%

Treasuries
29.62%

91 to 180 days
1.01%

School District
32.39%

Higher
Education

2.84%

Utility District
21.63%
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-0.01
0.14
0.29
0.44
0.59
0.74
0.89
1.04
1.19
1.34

TexSTAR Rate 90 Day T-BILL Rate

TexSTAR versus 90-Day Treasury Bill

  Mny Mkt Fund Daily Allocation  TexSTAR Invested  Market Value  WAM WAM
 Date Equiv. [SEC Std.] Factor  Balance Per Share Days (1)* Days (2)*
   
  8/1/2017 1.0269% 0.000028133 $5,958,423,624.01  1.000008 35 107
  8/2/2017 1.0244% 0.000028066 $5,927,420,372.22  1.000013 36 107
  8/3/2017 1.0230% 0.000028028 $5,895,748,821.96  1.000020 35 107
  8/4/2017 1.0242% 0.000028061 $5,824,627,246.37  1.000014 34 106
  8/5/2017 1.0242% 0.000028061 $5,824,627,246.37  1.000014 34 106
  8/6/2017 1.0242% 0.000028061 $5,824,627,246.37  1.000014 34 106
  8/7/2017 1.0265% 0.000028122 $5,803,098,892.21  1.000017 34 105
  8/8/2017 1.0252% 0.000028087 $5,816,254,819.20  1.000018 34 104
  8/9/2017 1.0254% 0.000028092 $5,799,774,219.71  1.000015 33 104
8/10/2017 1.0284% 0.000028175 $5,766,753,409.15  1.000022 33 103
8/11/2017 1.0295% 0.000028206 $5,861,095,445.05  1.000018 31 99
8/12/2017 1.0295% 0.000028206 $5,861,095,445.05  1.000018 31 99
8/13/2017 1.0295% 0.000028206 $5,861,095,445.05  1.000018 31 99
8/14/2017 1.0311% 0.000028250 $5,755,978,385.38  1.000017 30 100
8/15/2017 1.0421% 0.000028551 $5,756,348,529.52  1.000015 36 105
8/16/2017 1.0409% 0.000028517 $5,774,289,762.13  1.000021 36 104
8/17/2017 1.0411% 0.000028524 $5,748,909,497.26  1.000019 35 104
8/18/2017 1.0417% 0.000028541 $5,658,484,101.75  1.000015 34 103
8/19/2017 1.0417% 0.000028541 $5,658,484,101.75  1.000015 34 103
8/20/2017 1.0417% 0.000028541 $5,658,484,101.75  1.000015 34 103
8/21/2017 1.0380% 0.000028438 $5,636,967,915.80  1.000013 34 103
8/22/2017 1.0361% 0.000028385 $5,638,164,346.39  1.000060 34 102
8/23/2017 1.0362% 0.000028388 $5,641,392,495.42  1.000010 33 101
8/24/2017 1.0425% 0.000028563 $5,629,458,351.24  1.000010 33 101
8/25/2017 1.0404% 0.000028503 $5,646,493,234.75  1.000009 31 98
8/26/2017 1.0404% 0.000028503 $5,646,493,234.75  1.000009 31 98
8/27/2017 1.0404% 0.000028503 $5,646,493,234.75  1.000009 31 98
8/28/2017 1.0407% 0.000028511 $5,682,849,816.74  1.000019 30 97
8/29/2017 1.0403% 0.000028500 $5,677,559,283.15  1.000024 30 96
8/30/2017 1.0398% 0.000028488 $5,725,442,681.25  1.000026 29 94
8/31/2017 1.0482% 0.000028718 $5,770,863,631.13  1.000014 28 93
      
Average 1.0343% 0.000028338 $5,754,122,546.38    33 102

Daily Summary for August 2017

This material is for information purposes only. This information does not represent an offer to buy or sell a security. The above rate information is obtained from sources that are believed to be reliable; however, its accuracy 
or completeness August be subject to change. The TexSTAR management fee may be waived in full or in part at the discretion of the TexSTAR co-administrators and the TexSTAR rate for the period shown refl ects waiver 
of fees.  This table represents historical investment performance/return to the customer, net of fees, and is not an indication of future performance. An investment in the security is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency.  Although the issuer seeks to preserve the value of an investment at $1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by investing in the security. Information 
about these and other program details are in the fund’s Information Statement which should be read carefully before investing.  The yield on the 90-Day Treasury Bill (“T-Bill Yield”) is shown for comparative purposes 
only. When comparing the investment returns of the TexSTAR pool to the T-Bill Yield, you should know that the TexSTAR pool consist of allocations of specifi c diversifi ed securities as detailed in the respective Information 
Statements. The T-Bill Yield is taken from Bloomberg Finance L.P. and represents the daily closing yield on the then current 90-day T-Bill.
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TexSTAR Participant Services
FirstSouthwest, A Division of Hilltop Securities
1201 Elm Street, Suite 3500
Dallas, Texas 75270

TexSTAR Board Members

 William Chapman Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority Governing Board President 
 Nell Lange City of Frisco  Governing Board Vice President
 Eric Cannon City of Allen  Governing Board Treasurer  
 David Medanich FirstSouthwest / Hilltop Securities  Governing Board Secretary  
 Jennifer Novak J.P. Morgan Asset Management  Governing Board Asst. Sec./Treas.
      Nicole Conley Austin ISD  Advisory Board
  Becky Brooks Government Resource Associates, LLC Advisory Board
      Monte Mercer North Central TX Council of Government Advisory Board
      Stephen Fortenberry Plano ISD  Advisory Board 
      David Pate Richardson ISD  Advisory Board
      James Mauldin University of North Texas System   Advisory Board
 
  

For more information contact TexSTAR Participant Services   1-800-839-7827   www.texstar.org

21



 

 

September 26, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #5 

Executive Session  

 Executive Session: 
 
 Discuss legal issues related to claims by or against the Mobility Authority; pending or 
 contemplated litigation and any related settlement offers; or other matters as authorized 
 by §551.071 (Consultation With Attorney). 
 

  



 

 

September 26, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #6 

Executive Session 

 Executive Session: 
 
 Discuss legal issues relating to procurement and financing of Mobility Authority 
 transportation projects, as authorized by §551.071 (Consultation With Attorney). 

  



 

 

September 26, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #7 

Executive Session 

 Executive Session: 
 
 Discuss personnel matters as authorized by §551.074 (Personnel Matters). 
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September 26, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #9 

MoPac Improvement Project Update 

Strategic Plan Relevance:   Regional Mobility 

Department:     Engineering  

Contact:     Steve Pustelnyk, Director of Community Relations 

Associated Costs:     N/A    

Funding Source:   N/A 

Action Requested:   Briefing and Board Discussion Only 

 

Summary: 

 The report is a construction status update for the MoPac Improvement Project.  

 
Backup Provided:  None  



 

 

September 26, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #10 

Executive Director Board Report 

Strategic Plan Relevance:   Regional Mobility 

Department:     Executive  

Contact:     Mike Heiligenstein, Executive Director  

Associated Costs:     N/A    

Funding Source:   N/A 

Action Requested:   Briefing and Board Discussion Only 

 

Summary: 
 
 Executive Director Report. 

A. Follow up on the diamond lane per Charles Heimsath’s request. 
B. Introduction of new Director of Operations. 

 

Backup Provided:  None  
 



 

 

September 26, 2017 
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM #11 
Accept the Independent Audit Reports by RSM 

US LLP for the Fiscal Year Ending  
June 30, 2017  

Strategic Plan Relevance:   Regional Mobility/Innovation/Economic Vitality/  
     Sustainability 

Department:     Finance  

Contact:     Bill Chapman, Chief Financial Officer  

Associated Costs:     N/A 

Funding Source:   N/A 

Action Requested:   Consider and act on draft resolution 

 

Summary: 

Each year the Mobility Authority engages an independent CPA firm to conduct the 
Authority’s required annual audit and single audit. RSM US LLP has completed the 
annual audit for FY 2017 and will present those reports to the Audit Committee.  
 
The draft resolution accepts the annual audits for FY 2017. 
 
 
 
Backup Provided: To be provided at the Board Meeting. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
(the Authority), which comprise the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2017; the related Statements 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Cash Flows for the year then ended; and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial 
statements, as listed on the table of contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Authority’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in its financial position and its 
cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
The financial statements of the Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, were audited by 
other auditors, whose report dated September 12, 2016, expressed an unmodified opinion on those 
statements. 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis and the Required Supplementary Information—Pension Plan, as listed in the 
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Other Information  
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements as a 
whole. The Indenture Cash Flow and Debt Service Coverage on page 49 is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 26, 
2017, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
Austin, Texas 
September 26, 2017  
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
 
The Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (the Authority) presents the following discussion and 
analysis of the Authority’s financial activities during the fiscal years that ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
This section is intended to be read it in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements, which 
immediately follow this section.  

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The financial section of this annual report consists of four parts: management’s discussion and analysis, 
the basic financial statements, the notes to the financial statements and the required supplementary 
information. 
 
The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Authority’s overall 
financial status. The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the 
financial statements and provide more detailed data.  
 
Basic financial statements: The financial statements are designed to provide readers with an overview 
of the Authority’s finances in a manner similar to private-sector business. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Authority’s assets and deferred outflows, 
as well as the Authority’s liabilities and deferred inflows with the difference reported as net position. Over 
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating. The Statement of Net Position can be found on 
page 9 of this report. 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how 
the Authority’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that 
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. The increase or decrease in net position may serve as 
an indicator of the effect of the Authority’s current year operations on its financial position. The Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position can be found on page 10 of this report. 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows summarizes all of the Authority’s cash flows into three categories as 
applicable: 1) cash flows from operating activities, 2) cash flows from capital and related financing 
activities and 3) cash flows from investing activities. The Statement of Cash Flows can be found on  
page 11 of this report. The Statement of Cash Flows, along with the related notes and information in other 
financial statements, can be useful in assessing the following: 
 
 The Authority’s ability to generate future cash flows 

 
 The Authority’s ability to pay its debt as the debt matures 
 
 Reasons for the difference between the Authority’s operating cash flows and operating income 
 
 The impact of the Authority’s financial position of cash and noncash transactions from investing, 

capital, and financing activities 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements. The Notes to the Financial 
Statements can be found starting on page 12 of this report. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 Total toll revenue increased to $75.6 million in 2017 from $64.3 million in 2016 or an 18 percent 

increase. Total toll revenue increased from $53.6 million to $64.3 million from 2015 to 2016 or a 
20 percent increase. 
 

 Total operating expenses were approximately $45.0 million, $41.0 million and $37.9 million in 2017, 
2016 and 2015, respectively.  
 

 Total construction in progress was approximately $555.8 million, $338.6 million and $139.1 million as 
of June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Construction in progress increased by approximately 
$217.2 million from 2016 to 2017 in part due to progress made on the MoPac Improvement Project of 
approximately $25.9 million and start of the SH 45 Southwest of approximately $22.2 million and 
continuing the 183 South Project (collectively, the Projects) of approximately $162.6 million.  

 
 Construction in progress increased by approximately $199.4 million from 2015 to 2016 in part due to 

the progress made on the MoPac Improvement Project of approximately $46.0 million and start of the 
183 South Project of approximately $145.0 million. 

 
 Total restricted cash and cash equivalents decreased by $124.4 million from 2016 to 2017. The 

overall decrease in restricted cash and investments was largely due to construction of the Projects. 
 

 Total restricted cash and cash equivalent increased by $66.7 million from 2015 to 2016. The overall 
increase in restricted cash and cash equivalents was largely due to the bond proceeds from the 
issuance of debt in 2016. 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY 
 
Net position: As noted above, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority’s 
financial position. The net position reflects an un-expendable and expendable portion of net position. The 
Authority’s assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by approximately 
$635.1 million, $466.8 million and $319.0 million as of June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see 
Table A-1). As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the largest portion of the Authority’s net position is reflected its 
investment in capital assets (the Tolling System infrastructure and related assets) net of any outstanding 
debt used to acquire those assets. The second largest portion of net position, as of June 30, 2017 and 
2016, is expendable and reflects proceeds restricted for debt service or construction expenditures. 
Although the Authority’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted 
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  
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2017 2016 2015

Current assets 204,850  $      143,984  $      74,548  $        
Restricted assets 309,229          492,744          252,497          
Pension asset 355                 202                 474                 
Capital assets 1,491,482       1,084,996       892,639          

Total assets    2,005,916       1,721,926       1,220,158       
Deferred outflows of resources 109,742          91,656            18,080            

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 2,115,658  $   1,813,582  $   1,238,238  $   

Total liabilities 1,480,216  $   1,346,650  $   919,161  $      
Deferred inflows of resources 286                 172                 -                  

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 1,480,502  $   1,346,822  $   919,161  $      

Net position:
Invested in capital assets 436,282  $      200,628  $      122,740  $      
Restricted for other purposes 141,068          227,787          164,206          
Unrestricted 57,806            38,345            32,131            

Total net position 635,156          466,760          319,077          

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position 2,115,658  $   1,813,582  $   1,238,238  $   

Table A-1
Condensed Schedule of Net Position

(In Thousands of Dollars)

 
For fiscal year 2017, current and restricted assets decreased as a result of the Authority’s ongoing 
construction on the Projects. The Authority receives grant funds, and bond proceeds to fund the Projects.  
 
For fiscal year 2016, current and restricted assets increased as a result of the Authority’s issuance of new 
debt to fund ongoing construction on the Projects.  
 
For fiscal year 2017 and 2016, excluding accumulated depreciation capital assets increased as a result of 
the ongoing construction and current period Project additions of approximately $222.3 million and 
$214.0 million, respectively. 
 
For fiscal year 2016 and 2015, excluding accumulated depreciation capital asset increased as a result of 
the ongoing construction and current period additions of approximately $214.0 million and $81.1 million, 
respectively, on the Projects. 
 
Changes in net position: The operating revenues continue to increase as the level of system 
transactions increases within the completed projects of the Authority’s Tolling System (Highway 290E, 
Highway 183A Toll and the addition of Highway 71E in March of 2017). The average daily system 
transactions increased in 2017 from approximately 198 thousand per day in 2016 to approximately 
222.7 thousand per day or from an annual total of approximately 62 million to 80 million from 2016 to 
2017.  
 
The average daily system transactions increased in 2016 from approximately 172 thousand per day to 
approximately 198 thousand per day in 2015 or from an annual total of approximately 45 million to 
62 million from 2015 to 2016.  
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Total Monthly Tolling System Transactions 
 

 

As noted at Table A-2 on the following page, operating expenses increased by $4.0 million from 2016 to 
2017 and $3.1 million from 2015 to 2016. The increases are related to the increase in the number of 
tolling transactions which result in additional expenses for road maintenance, image and tag collection 
fees.  
 
The nonoperating expenses (net) decreased from $50.8 million in fiscal year 2016 to $32.5 million in 
fiscal year 2017. The decrease is attributed to financing expenses in 2016 from issuance of new revenue 
bonds exceeding the 2017 financing expenses. Additionally, the Series 2016 Refunding Bonds allowed 
for lower cost of borrowing and the Authority also capitalized interest of $13.9 million in 2017 compared to 
$9.1 million in 2016.  
 
The nonoperating expenses (net) increased from $42.1 million in fiscal year 2015 to $50.8 million in fiscal 
year 2016. The increase is attributable to interest expense and financing expenses due to the issuance of 
new revenue bonds. 
 
The change in net position before capital grants and contributions is a loss of $0.2 million compared to a 
loss of $26.0 million and $24.0 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. See Table A-2. 
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2017 2016 2015
Revenues:

Toll revenue 75,651  $       64,312  $       53,592  $       
Grant proceeds and other operating 1,569             1,486             2,222             

Total revenues 77,220           65,798           55,814           

Expenses:
Administration 20,501           16,721           13,935           
Professional services 2,371             2,578             2,754             
Depreciation and amortization 22,099           21,692           21,233           

Total expenses 44,971           40,991           37,922           

Operating income 32,249           24,807           17,892           
Total net nonoperating revenue (expenses) (32,461)          (50,837)          (42,127)          

Change in net position—before capital grants (212)               (26,030)          (24,235)          
and contributions

Capital grants and contributions 168,608         173,714         55,357           
Change in net position 168,396         147,684         31,122           

Total net position at beginning of year 466,760         319,076         287,954         
Total net position at end of year 635,156  $     466,760  $     319,076  $     

Table A-2
Condensed Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

(In Thousands of Dollars)

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital assets: As of June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Authority had invested approximately 
$555.8 million; $338.6 million and $139.1 million, respectively, in construction in progress. Of the 
$555.8 million and $338.6 million of the construction in progress, the non-tolling system projects (projects 
other than Highway 290E, Highway 183A, Highway 71E and 183 South Toll) made up $216.8 million and 
$167.0 million of the total in 2017 and 2016, respectively. See Table A-3 and Note 3. 
 

                             
2017 2016 2015

Property and equipment 12,474  $       11,830  $       11,767  $       
Toll road 1,009,918      837,774         823,229         
Accumulated depreciation (125,242)        (103,162)        (81,489)          
Construction in progress 594,333         338,554         139,132         

Net capital assets 1,491,483  $  1,084,996  $  892,639  $     

Table A-3
Capital Assets

(Net of Depreciation, in Thousands of Dollars)
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Long-term debt: As of June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Authority had total debt outstanding of 
approximately $1,364.5 million, $1,244.5 million and $794.8 million, respectively. See Table A-4. 
 
On July 25, 2017, Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) affirmed the Baa2 rating for senior lien bonds and 
Baa3 rating for the subordinate lien revenue refunding bonds of the Authority. Moody’s revised the 
outlook for the Authority to positive.  
   

2017 2016 2015
Total debt:

Total bonds and other obligations 1,360,946  $  1,239,227  $  787,833  $     
Total notes 3,570             5,300             7,030             

Total debt outstanding 1,364,516  $  1,244,527  $  794,863  $     

Total debt service payments:
Principal payments 6,425  $         6,905  $         4,794  $         
Interest payments 43,872           38,004           39,848           

Table A-4
Total Debt

(In Thousands of Dollars)

 
The total debt obligations include the current portion of the obligations of $6,950,000, $6,425,000 and 
$6,905,258 for 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.  
 
Additional information on the Authority’s long-term debt can be found in Note 4 of this report. 
 
CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide interested parties with a general overview of the Authority’s 
finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions 
about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Central Texas Regional Mobility 
Authority, 3300 North IH 35, Suite 300, Austin, 78705. 
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Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority

Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Current assets:

Unrestricted:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 903,311  $                  714,088  $                  

Investments (Note 2) 67,774,818                 682,683                      

Due from other governments (Note 9) 17,083,930                 86,763,659                 

Accrued interest receivable 325,529                      490,450                      

Prepaid expenses and other assets 37,999                        107,601                      

Total unrestricted 86,125,587                 88,758,481                 

Restricted:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 118,725,139               55,225,460                 

Total restricted 118,725,139               55,225,460                 

Total current assets 204,850,726               143,983,941               

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 81,632,324                 269,711,004               

Investments (Note 2) 227,597,046               223,032,526               

Total restricted assets 309,229,370               492,743,530               

Pension asset (Note 8) 355,139                      202,023                      

Total capital assets, net (Note 3) 1,491,481,738            1,084,996,036            

Total noncurrent assets 2,005,916,973            1,721,925,530            

Total deferred outflows of resources (Notes 5 and 8) 109,741,671               91,656,069                 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 2,115,658,644  $        1,813,581,599  $        

Current liabilities:

Payable from current assets:

Accounts payable 1,838,473  $               1,330,859  $               

Due to other agencies 1,672,933                   775,589                      

Accrued expenses 413,542                      316,233                      

Total payable from current assets 3,924,948                   2,422,681                   

Payable from restricted current assets:

Construction accounts payable 73,481,537                 29,254,281                 

Accrued interest payable 25,975,163                 19,546,179                 

Bonds, notes payable and other obligations, current portion (Note 4) 6,950,000                   6,425,000                   

Unearned revenue 12,318,439                 -                              

Total payable from restricted current assets 118,725,139               55,225,460                 

Total current liabilities 122,650,087               57,648,141                 

Noncurrent liabilities:

Unearned revenue -                              50,900,048                 

Notes payable, net of current portion (Note 4) 1,805,000                   3,570,000                   

Revenue bonds payable and other obligations, net of current portion (note 4) 1,355,761,123            1,234,531,635            

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,357,566,123            1,289,001,683            

Total liabilities 1,480,216,210            1,346,649,824            

Total deferred inflows of resources (Notes 5 and 8) 286,449                      172,017                      

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 1,480,502,659            1,346,821,841            

Net position:

Investment in capital assets 436,282,193               200,627,568               

Restricted for Debt Service 141,067,986               227,786,780               

Unrestricted 57,805,806                 38,345,410                 

Total net position 635,155,985               466,759,758               

Total liabilities and net position 2,115,658,644  $        1,813,581,599  $        

See notes to financial statements.
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Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
Operating revenues:

Tolls 75,651,364  $    64,312,051  $    
Grant proceeds and other operating 1,568,891          1,486,310          

Total operating revenues 77,220,255        65,798,361        

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 4,337,946          3,681,148          
Toll contractual services 8,356,483          7,424,664          
Professional services 2,370,921          2,578,740          
General and administrative 7,806,640          5,615,089          
Depreciation and amortization 22,099,071        21,691,703        

Total operating expenses 44,971,061        40,991,344        

Operating income 32,249,194        24,807,017        

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 847,178             486,637             
Financing expense (1,358,618)         (9,384,791)         
Interest expense, net of interest capitalized (31,949,097)       (41,939,306)       

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) (32,460,537)       (50,837,460)       

Change in net position before capital grants and 
contributions (211,343)            (26,030,443)       

Capital grants and contributions 168,607,570      173,713,752      
Change in net position 168,396,227      147,683,309      

Total net position at beginning of year 466,759,758      319,076,449      

Total net position at end of year 635,155,985  $  466,759,758  $  

See notes to financial statements.
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Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from toll fees 73,772,971  $           64,876,236  $           
Receipts from grants and other income 1,568,891                 1,486,310                 
Payments to vendors (17,059,484)             (14,564,319)             
Payments to employees (4,258,810)               (3,819,516)               

Net cash flows provided by operating activities 54,023,568               47,978,711               

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from notes payable and other obligations 49,636,149               11,454,088               
Proceeds from (payments on) revenue bonds issuance (3,855,854)               355,765,281             
Payments on interest (45,132,276)             (35,333,229)             
Payments on bonds (6,425,000)               (6,905,258)               
Purchase of capital assets (2,260,579)               (62,727)                    
Payments for construction in progress (206,701,520)           (199,069,851)           
Proceeds from capital grants 100,753,583             80,410,037               
Proceeds from contributed capital 4,500,000                 -                           

Net cash flows provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (109,485,497)           206,258,341             

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income, gross of capitalized interest 3,170,825                 59,890                      
Purchase of investments (285,516,658)           (251,082,404)           
Proceeds from sale or maturity of investments 213,417,984             63,379,136               

Net cash flows used in investing activities (68,927,849)             (187,643,378)           

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (124,389,778)           66,593,674               

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 325,650,552             259,056,878             

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 201,260,774  $         325,650,552  $         

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income 32,249,194  $           24,807,017  $           
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 22,099,071               21,691,703               
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in due from other agencies (1,926,383)               564,185                    
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets 69,602                      (84,471)                    
Increase in accounts payable 555,604                    923,985                    
Increase in accrued expenses 946,663                    160,700                    
(Increase) decrease in pension asset (153,116)                  272,214                    
Increase in deferred outflow of resources 68,501                      (528,639)                  
Increase in deferred inflow of resources 114,432                    172,017                    

Total adjustments 21,774,374               23,171,694               

Net cash flows provided by operating activities 54,023,568  $           47,978,711  $           

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 903,311  $                714,088  $                
Restricted cash and cash equivalents:

Current 118,725,139             55,225,460               
Noncurrent 81,632,324               269,711,004             

Total 201,260,774  $         325,650,552  $         

See notes to financial statements.
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (the Authority) have been 
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles. The more significant of the Authority’s accounting policies are described below: 
 
A. Reporting entity: The Authority was authorized by the State of Texas in 2002. The Authority is 
authorized to construct, maintain, repair and operate turnpike projects at locations authorized by the 
Legislature of the State of Texas and approved by the State Department of Transportation. The Authority 
receives its revenues from tolls, fees and reimbursement grants from the operation of turnpike projects 
and reimbursement grants for the construction of toll projects. The Authority may issue revenue bonds for 
the purpose of paying the costs of turnpike projects. 
 
The Authority was formed through the joint efforts of Travis and Williamson Counties (the Counties). Their 
efforts began in September 2002, following the enactment of provisions by the 77th Texas Legislature 
authorizing the formation of regional mobility authorities (RMAs). The petition to form the Authority was 
filed by the Counties, and the Texas Transportation Commission granted approval for its formation in 
October 2002. The Counties appointed its initial Board of directors (the Board) in January 2003. Each 
County appointed three directors, and the Governor appointed the presiding officer. The members are 
appointed in belief that the composition of the Board and the common interest in the region shared by all 
Board members will result in adequate representation of all political subdivisions within the geographic 
area of the RMA and serve without pay for terms of two years. The Authority has full control over all 
operations, but must comply with certain bond indentures and trust agreements. The Authority employs 
an Executive Director who manages the day-to-day operations. 
 
In evaluating how to define the Authority for financial reporting purposes, management has determined 
there are no entities over which the Authority exercises significant influence. Significant influence or 
accountability is based primarily on operational or financial relationships with the Authority. Since the 
Authority does not exercise significant influence or accountability over other entities, it has no component 
units. 
  
B. Basis of accounting: The operations of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary 
(enterprise) fund through which all financial activities are recorded. The measurement focus for an 
enterprise fund is the flow of economic resources. An enterprise fund follows the accrual basis of 
accounting. With this measurement focus, all assets, liabilities and deferred inflows and outflows of 
resources associated with the operations are included on the Statements of Net Position. Net position 
(i.e., total assets and deferred outflows net of total liabilities and deferred inflows) is segregated into 
amounts of net investment in capital assets, amounts restricted for capital activity and debt service 
pursuant to the bond indenture, and amounts which are unrestricted. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses are recognized in 
the period in which the liability is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows, and depreciation 
of capital assets is recognized. Revenue from grants and contracts specifying allowable costs to be 
incurred are recognized as revenue when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider are met and 
qualifying expenditures have been incurred.  
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. Cash, cash equivalents and investments: Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, 
demand deposits, investments in local government investment pools and short-term investments with 
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Bank deposits are fully 
collateralized or covered by federal depository insurance.  

 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an ordinary transaction between market 
participants. Investments in debt securities are reported at fair value based on pricing service modeling 
for fixed income securities. Investment in local government investment pools are reported at amortized 
cost. The net change in fair value of investments is recorded on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position and includes the unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments. 
 
The Authority’s investment practices are governed by State statutes, the Authority’s own investment 
policy and bond indentures and the Texas Public Funds Investment Act. 
 
D. Compensated absences: Vested or accumulated vacation leave is recorded as an expense and a 
liability as the benefits accrue to employees. There are no accumulating sick leave benefits that vest for 
which any liability must be recognized.  
 
E. Capital assets: Capital assets, which include property and equipment, right of way and toll roads, 
are reported at cost. Capital assets acquired through contributions, such as those from developers or 
other governments, are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. Capital assets are 
defined as assets with initial, individual costs exceeding $500 to $20,000, depending on the asset 
category. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:  
 

Estimated
Useful Live

Roads and bridges 40 years
Improvements 5-20 years
Buildings 20-30 years
Equipment 3-10 years

 
A full month’s depreciation is taken in the month an asset is placed in service. When property and 
equipment are disposed, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective 
accounts, and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recorded in operations. 

 
The Authority capitalizes interest cost of restricted tax-exempt borrowings less any interest earned on 
temporary investment of the proceeds of those borrowings from the date of borrowing until the specified 
qualifying assets acquired with those borrowings are ready for their intended use. 
 
The Authority tests for impairment of capital assets when significant unexpected decline in service utility 
occurs. There were no asset impairments in fiscal year 2017 or 2016.  
 
  



Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 

14 

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

F. Grants and contributions: Revenues from grants and contributions are cash and noncash which 
include the following: (1) Capital grants and contributions which are restricted revenues whose resources 
may only be spent to purchase, build or use capital assets for specified programs or (2) Operating grants 
and contributions which are restricted in the way they may be spent for operations of a particular 
program.  
 
The Authority has entered into several construction contracts with the Texas Department of 
Transportation (TxDOT) for the construction of roadways using Highway Planning and Construction 
federal funding and certain state funding for transportation improvements. During the years ended 
June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Authority recognized capital grants and contributions of approximately 
$168.6 million and $173.7 million, respectively, from TxDOT. Revenues from federal and state cost 
reimbursement grants and contracts are recognized as earned when all eligibility requirements, including 
incurring allowable expenditures, have been met. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, there was approximately 
$12.3 million and $50.9 million, respectively, of unearned revenue from TxDOT construction contracts 
which is recorded as unearned revenue in the Statement of Net Position until qualifying allowable 
expenditures are incurred. 
 
G. Restricted assets: Certain assets of the Authority are classified as restricted assets in the 
Statement of Net Position because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants or TxDOT 
construction contracts. When the proceeds are restricted for the acquisition or construction of noncurrent 
assets or are restricted for liquidation of long-term debt, they are further classified as noncurrent restricted 
assets. The Authority’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for 
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available. In the financial statements, 
restricted net position is reported for amounts that are externally restricted by creditors (e.g., bond 
covenants), grantors, contributors or laws and regulations of other governments or law through 
constitutional provision or enabling legislation.  
 
H. Income taxes: The Authority is an instrumentality of the state of Texas. As such, income earned in 
the exercise of its essential government functions is exempt from federal income taxes.  
 
I. Pensions: The net pension liability, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Authority’s participation in 
the Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS), an Agent Plan, and additions to/deductions 
from TCDRS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
TCDRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
in the TCDRS net pension liability calculations when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. The investments are stated at fair value.  
 
J. Deferred outflows and inflows of resources: The Authority has classified as deferred inflows of 
resources items that represent acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will not be 
recognized as a revenue until then. The Authority has classified as deferred outflows of resources certain 
items that represent a consumption of resources that applies to a future period and, therefore, will not be 
recognized as an expense until then. Bond issuance cost, other than prepaid insurance, is expensed as 
incurred, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities. Deferred gains/losses on refunding (the difference between the reacquisition price and the 
carrying value of the existing debt) are recorded as deferred outflows of resources and amortized over the 
shorter of the life of the original bonds or the life of the refunding bonds.  
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

K. Long-term obligations: Long term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net 
position and consist of notes and bonds payable and related premiums and discounts. The Authority 
amortizes premiums and discounts over the estimated life of the bonds as an adjustment to interest 
expense using the effective interest method.  
 
L. Classification of operating and nonoperating revenue and expenses: The Authority defines 
operating revenues and expenses as those revenues and expenses generated by the Authority’s Tolling 
System. It also includes all revenues and expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital 
financing or investing activities. This definition is consistent with the Codification of Governmental 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, which defines operating receipts as cash receipts from 
customers and other cash receipts that do not result from transactions defined as capital and related 
financing, noncapital financing or investing activities. All revenues and expense not meeting this definition 
are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
M. Estimates: The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Examples of management’s use of 
estimates and assumptions include, but are not limited to, depreciable lives and estimated residual value 
of property and equipment, and the valuation of investments.  
 
N. Noncash disclosures for statements of cash flows: 
 
Highway 71E Toll Project: Effective February 27, 2013, the Authority executed an agreement with 
TxDOT and elected to waive and decline the Authority option under the Texas Administrative Code to 
develop, finance, and construct the Highway 71E Toll Project which consists of three miles of toll lanes 
(the Project). However, the Authority elected to retain its option to operate any potential toll lanes on the 
Project and to retain the revenues generated therefrom. Under the agreement, TxDOT funded the 
development, design, and construction of the Project, subject to partial reimbursement from the Authority 
as provided in this agreement. The Project was substantially completed and operational in 2017. The 
completion of the Project resulted in the contribution of the Highway 71E Toll Project asset to the 
Authority’s toll system in the amount of approximately $161.0 million with a repayment liability of 
approximately $65.0 million, from future toll collections, and a capital contribution from TxDOT of 
$96.0 million of the toll project cost. 

 
Noncash Disclosure (in Millions) 2017 2016

Highway 71E Toll Project obligation:
Increase in highway and bridge capital asset 161.0  $     -$           
Capital Contribution of Highway 71E Toll Project from TxDOT 96.0           -             
Increase in Highway 71E Toll Project Obligation to TxDOT 65.0           -             

Total 322.0  $     -$           

 
 
 
  



Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 

16 

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Series 2015 and 2016 Obligations: The Authority issued its Series 2015A Senior Lien Revenue Bonds 
and Series 2015B Senior Lien Revenue and Refunding Put Bonds on November 19, 2015, collectively 
called the Series 2015 Obligations. The Authority issued its Series 2016 Senior Lien Revenue Refunding 
Bonds on June 1, 2016 and its Series 2016 Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds on August 1, 
2016, called the Series 2016 Obligations. The refunding effected through the use of a portion of the 
proceeds of the Series 2015 Obligations and the Series 2016 Obligations resulted in the following 
noncash transactions:  
 

Noncash Disclosure (in Millions) 2017 2016
Payments to refunding bond escrow:

2013 B Senior Lien Bonds -$           30.0  $       
2010 Senior Lien Bonds -             51.0           
2011 Senior Lien Bonds 70.0           296.0         
Issuance costs 1.0             9.4             
Deferred outflow on refunding 19.4           74.8           

Total 90.4  $       461.2  $     

 

Note 2. Cash and Investments 

The Authority’s Board has adopted an Investment Policy to set forth the factors involved in the 
management of investment assets for the Authority. The Authority seeks to mitigate risk by investing in 
compliance with the investment policy, state statutes and bond indenture provisions by qualifying the 
broker or financial institution with whom the Authority will transact business, maintaining sufficient 
collateralization, portfolio diversification and limiting maturities.  
 
TexSTAR Investment Pool balances are carried at amortized cost which does not require categorization 
under GASB No. 72, Fair Value Measurements and Application. 
 
The Authority had the following investments as of June 30: 
 

Summary of Investments by Type 2017 2016

Cash and cash equivalents 201,260,774  $  325,650,552  $  
TexSTAR Investment Pool 169,963,150      16,290,848        
United States government sponsored enterprises 125,408,714      204,921,478      
Municipal Bonds -                     2,502,883          

Total cash and investments 496,632,638  $  549,365,761  $  

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 903,311  $         714,088  $         
Unrestricted investments 67,774,818        682,683             
Restricted cash and cash equivalents:

Current 118,725,139      55,225,460        
Noncurrent 81,632,324        269,711,004      

Restricted investments 227,597,046      223,032,526      

Total cash and cash equivalent and investment, as
reported on the Statement of Net Position 496,632,638  $  549,365,761  $  
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Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued) 

The Authority utilizes various methods to measure the fair value of investments on a recurring basis. 
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, establishes a hierarchy that prioritizes 
inputs to valuation methods. The three levels of inputs are:  
 
Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that the 
Authority has the ability to access.  
 
Level 2: Inputs are observable other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These inputs may include quoted prices for the identical 
instrument in an inactive market, prices for similar instruments, interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit 
risk, yield curves, default rates and similar data.  
 
Level 3: Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability, to the extent relevant observable inputs are not 
available, representing the Authority’s own assumptions about the assumptions a market participant 
would use in valuing the asset or liability, and would be based on the best information available.  

 
The availability of observable inputs can vary from security to security and is affected by a wide variety of 
factors, including, for example, the type of security, whether the security is new and not yet established in 
the marketplace, the liquidity of markets, and other characteristics particular to the security. To the extent 
that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the 
determination of fair value requires more judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised in 
determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3.  
 
The inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such 
cases, for disclosure purposes, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value 
measurement falls in its entirety, is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement in its entirety. Investments measured at net asset value do not have significant terms 
or conditions for redemption or commitment for additional funding. The inputs or methodology used for 
valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing in those securities.  
 
The following tables summarize the inputs used as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 for the Authority’s 
investments measured at fair value:  
 

Investment Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value

Federal HOME Loan Bank -$             75,626,854  $   -$             75,626,854  $   
Federal Farm Credit Bank -               39,975,000       -               39,975,000       
Farmer MAC -               9,806,860         -               9,806,860         

Total U.S. government sponsored
enterprise securities -$             125,408,714  $ -$             125,408,714     

Investment at amortized cost:
TexSTAR Investment Pool 169,963,150     

Total 295,371,864  $ 

Fair Value Hierarchy—June 30, 2017

 
  



Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 

18 

Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Investment Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value

Federal HOME Loan Bank -$             96,466,199  $   -$             96,466,199  $   
Federal HOME Loan Corp. -               24,092,574       -               24,092,574       
Federal HOME Loan Bank Series -               8,000,675         -               8,000,675         
Federal National Mortgage Assn. -               16,048,171       -               16,048,171       
Federal Farm Credit Bank -               47,974,609       -               47,974,609       
Freddie MAC Callable -               9,838,850         -               9,838,850         
Farmer MAC -               2,500,400         -               2,500,400         

Total U.S. government sponsored
enterprise securities -$             204,921,478  $ -$             204,921,478     

Municipal bonds -$             2,502,883  $     -$             2,502,883         

Investment at amortized cost:
TexSTAR Investment Pool 16,290,848       

Total 223,715,209  $ 

Fair Value Hierarchy—June 30, 2016

 
Custodial credit risk—deposits: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of a depository financial institution, the Authority will not be able to recover its deposits or will not 
be able to recover its collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Authority has 
a formal policy specific to custodial credit risk, which requires bank deposit accounts to be collateralized 
with pledged securities equal to 105 percent of the carrying value.  

 
There is no limit on the amount the Authority may deposit in any one institution. The Authority was fully 
collateralized with pledged securities held in the name of the pledging financial institution for amounts in 
excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit of approximately $318.0 thousand as of June 
30, 2017. 
 
Custodial credit risk—investments: Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of 
the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its 
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investment securities are 
exposed to custodial risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the Authority 
and are held by the counterparty, its trust or agent, but not in the Authority’s name. The Authority’s 
investment securities are not exposed to custodial credit risk because all securities are held by the 
Authority’s custodial bank in the Authority’s name.  
 
Concentration of credit risk: Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of 
the Authority’s investment in a single issuer. The Authority is authorized to invest funds in accordance 
with its investment policy, bond indentures and the Texas Public Funds Investment Act. Authorized 
investments include, but are not limited to: United States Treasury and federal agency issues, certificates 
of deposit issued by a state or national bank domiciled in the state of Texas, repurchase agreements 
collateralized by United States Treasury or federal agency securities, guaranteed investment contracts 
(GICs), obligations of states and municipalities, Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) registered 
no-load money market mutual funds and local government investment funds.   



Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 

19 

Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued) 

With regards to investment composition, the Authority’s investment policy currently states that local 
government investment pools may not exceed 80 percent of the total investment portfolio less bond 
funds. Bond funds may be invested at 100 percent of total investment portfolio. No other parameters for 
investment composition are stated in the approved investment policy. 
 
The Authority’s portfolio consisted of the following as of June 30: 
 

2017 2016

TexSTAR Investment Pool 169,963,150  $    57.5% 16,290,848  $      7.3%
Federal HOME Loan Bank 75,626,854          25.6% 96,466,199          43.1%
Federal HOME Loan Corp. -                       -                       24,092,574          10.8%
Federal HOME Loan Bank Series -                       -                       8,000,675            3.6%
Federal National Mortgage Assn. -                       -                       16,048,171          7.2%
Federal Farm Credit Bank 39,975,000          13.5% 47,974,609          21.4%
Freddie Mac Callable -                       -                       9,838,850            4.4%
Farmer MAC 9,806,860            3.3% 2,500,400            1.1%

U.S. government sponsored 125,408,714  $    42.5% 204,921,478  $    91.6%
enterprises

Municipal bonds -$                     0.0% 2,502,883  $        1.1%

 
Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the changes in interest rates will adversely affect the 
fair value of an investment. Interest rate risk may be mitigated by investing operating funds primarily in 
shorter term securities, money market funds or similar investment pools and limiting the average maturity 
of the portfolio. 
 
The Authority’s investment policy notes that with regard to maximum maturities, the Authority will attempt 
to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, 
the Authority will not directly invest operating or general funds in securities maturing more than 16 months 
from the date of purchase, unless approved by the Authority’s Board. Investment of bond proceeds shall 
not exceed the projected expenditure schedule of the related project. Reserve funds may be invested in 
securities exceeding 12 months if the maturities of such investments are made to coincide as nearly as 
practicable with the expected use of the funds. 
 
As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Authority’s investments in debt securities mature as follows: 
 

90 Days Greater Than
Investment Type or Less 91 to 180 Days 181 to 365 Days 365 Days Fair Value

Federal HOME Loan Bank 21,275,076  $   14,387,328  $   39,964,450  $     -$                    75,626,854  $     
Federal Farm Credit Bank 24,996,000       -                    14,979,000         -                      39,975,000         
Farmer MAC -                    9,806,860         -                      -                      9,806,860           
Total U.S. government sponsored 

enterprise securities 46,271,076  $   24,194,188  $   54,943,450  $     -$                    125,408,714  $   

Investment Maturities (in Days)—2017
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Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued) 

90 Days Greater Than
Investment Type or Less 91 to 180 Days 181 to 365 Days 365 Days Fair Value

Federal HOME Loan Bank -$                  33,307,172  $   17,021,525  $     46,137,502  $     96,466,199  $     
Federal HOME Loan Corp. -                    -                    24,092,574         -                      24,092,574         
Federal HOME Loan Bank Series -                    -                    -                      8,000,675           8,000,675           
Federal National Mortgage Assn. -                    -                    16,048,171         -                      16,048,171         
Federal Farm Credit Bank -                    -                    8,000,590           39,974,019         47,974,609         
Freddie Mac Callable -                    -                    -                      9,838,850           9,838,850           
 Farmer MAC -                    -                    2,500,400           -                      2,500,400           
Total U.S. government sponsored 

enterprise securities -                    33,307,172       67,663,260         103,951,046       204,921,478       

Municipal bonds -                    -                    -                      2,502,883           2,502,883           
Total -$                  33,307,172  $   67,663,260  $     106,453,929  $   207,424,361  $   

Investment Maturities (in Days)—2016

 
Local Government Investment Pool: The Texas Short-Term Asset Reserve Fund (TexSTAR) is a public 
funds investment pool created pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, of the Texas 
Government Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256. 
TexSTAR is managed by a 5-member board of trustees who has contracted with JPMorgan Investment 
Management, Inc. and First Southwest Asset Management, Inc. to administer the operations of the fund. 
TexSTAR is rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s and maintains a weighted average maturity of 60 days or 
less, with a maximum maturity of 13 months for any individual security. The amounts can be withdrawn 
with limited notice.  
 
The Chief Financial Officer of the Authority is the President of TexSTAR. The Authority has investments 
of $170.0 million and $16.3 million, respectively in TexSTAR as of June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 
Credit risk: Credit risk is the risk than an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations to the Authority. To help mitigate credit risk, credit quality guidelines are incorporated into the 
investment policy, as follows: 
 
 Limiting investments to the safest types of securities, as listed above under the concentration of 

credit risk section 
 

 Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, brokers/dealers, intermediaries, and advisors with which the 
Authority will do business 
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Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued) 

The Authority’s investments had the following credit risk structure as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, based 
on Standard & Poor’s ratings:  

 

Investment 
U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise Securities Grade Rating 2017 2016

Federal HOME Loan Bank AA+ 75,626,854  $     96,466,199  $     
Federal HOME Loan Corp. AA+ -                      24,092,574         
Federal HOME Loan Bank Series AA+ -                      8,000,675           
Federal National Mortgage Assn. AA+ -                      16,048,171         
Federal Farm Credit Bank AA+ 39,975,000         47,974,609         
Freddie MAC Callable AA+ -                      9,838,850           
Farmer MAC AA+ 9,806,860           2,500,400           
Total U.S. government sponsored enterprise securities 125,408,714       204,921,478       
Municipal bonds AAA -                      2,502,883           

Total 125,408,714  $   207,424,361  $   

Standard & Poor’s

 

Note 3. Capital Assets 

The following schedule summarizes the capital assets of the Authority as of June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 

2016 Additions Disposals Transfers 2017
Nondepreciable assets:
    Construction in progress 338,554,088  $       262,061,658  $    -$            (6,282,656)  $      594,333,090  $       
    Right of way 86,849,831             1,298,277            -              -                     88,148,108             

Total nondepreciable assets: 425,403,919           263,359,935        -              (6,282,656)         682,481,198           

Depreciable assets:
    Property and equipment 11,829,980             662,733               -              (18,715)              12,473,998             
Toll road:
    Building and toll facilities 7,062,332               -                      -              -                     7,062,332               
    Highways and bridges 688,882,100           163,189,726        -              6,282,656           858,354,482           
    Toll equipment 27,734,552             1,372,379            -              -                     29,106,931             
    Signs 13,001,702             -                      -              -                     13,001,702             
    Land improvements 14,243,759             -                      -              -                     14,243,759             

Total depreciable assets 762,754,425           165,224,838        -              6,263,941           934,243,204           

Property and equipment (10,234,692)            (612,070)             -              18,715                (10,828,047)            
Building and toll facilities (1,594,679)              (177,115)             -              -                     (1,771,794)              
Highways and bridges (76,374,847)            (17,459,980)         -              -                     (93,834,827)            
Toll equipment (10,477,858)            (2,639,079)          -              -                     (13,116,937)            
Signs (1,745,346)              (325,893)             -              -                     (2,071,239)              
Land improvements (2,734,886)              (884,934)             -              -                     (3,619,820)              
Accumulated depreciation (103,162,308)          (22,099,071)         -              18,715                (125,242,664)          

Net property and equipment 1,084,996,036  $    406,485,702  $    -$            -$                   1,491,481,738  $    
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Note 3. Capital Assets (Continued) 

2015 Additions Disposals Transfers 2016
Nondepreciable assets:
    Construction in progress 139,131,886  $       213,967,813  $    -$            (14,545,611)  $    338,554,088  $       
    Right of way 86,838,920             10,911                 -              -                     86,849,831             

Total nondepreciable assets 225,970,806           213,978,724        -              (14,545,611)        425,403,919           

Depreciable assets:
    Property and equipment 11,767,254             80,829                 -              (18,103)              11,829,980             
Toll road:
    Building and toll facilities 7,073,225               -                      (10,893)       -                     7,062,332               
    Highways and bridges 674,370,989           -                      -              14,511,111         688,882,100           
    Toll equipment 27,700,052             -                      -              34,500                27,734,552             
    Signs 13,001,702             -                      -              -                     13,001,702             
    Land improvements 14,243,759             -                      -              -                     14,243,759             

Total depreciable assets 748,156,981           80,829                 (10,893)       14,527,508         762,754,425           

Property and equipment (9,640,883)              (611,912)             -              18,103                (10,234,692)            
Building and toll facilities (1,417,564)              (177,115)             -              -                     (1,594,679)              
Highways and bridges (59,437,222)            (16,937,625)         -              (76,374,847)            
Toll equipment (7,723,633)              (2,754,225)          -              -                     (10,477,858)            
Signs (1,419,453)              (325,893)             -              -                     (1,745,346)              
Land improvements (1,849,952)              (884,934)             -              -                     (2,734,886)              
Accumulated depreciation (81,488,708)            (21,691,703)         -              18,103                (103,162,308)          

Net property and equipment 892,639,079  $       192,367,850  $    (10,893)  $   -$                   1,084,996,036  $    

Construction in progress as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, consists of the following: 
 

2016 Additions Disposals Transfers 2017
Construction in progress:

Preliminary and construction costs 323,615,537  $   245,980,128  $   -$           (6,330,241)  $      563,265,424  $   
Collection system 5,263,163           2,111,696           -             -                     7,374,859           
Capitalized interest 9,675,388           13,969,834         -             47,585                23,692,807         

Net construction in progress 338,554,088  $   262,061,658  $   -$           (6,282,656)  $      594,333,090  $   

2015 Additions Disposals Transfers 2016
Construction in progress:

Preliminary and construction costs 136,211,585  $   201,880,258  $   -$           (14,476,306)  $    323,615,537  $   
Collection system 2,361,793           2,935,875           -             (34,505)              5,263,163           
Capitalized interest 558,508              9,151,680           -             (34,800)              9,675,388           

Net construction in progress 139,131,886  $   213,967,813  $   -$           (14,545,611)  $    338,554,088  $   

 
Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, totaled $22,099,071 and 
$21,691,703, respectively.  
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Note 3. Capital Assets (Continued) 

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Authority has nontolling system projects (projects other than  
Highway 290E, Highway 183A Toll, Highway 71E and 183 South Toll) construction in progress for the 
following projects: 
 

2017 2016
Construction in progress nonsystem projects:

MoPac Improvement Project 161,541,983  $  136,621,836  $  
MoPac South 11,327,315        9,233,160          
183N Mobility 8,455,862          6,996,455          
SH45 Southwest 31,775,145        9,644,284          
US290 West (Oak Hill) 3,793,939          2,801,420          

216,894,244  $  165,297,155  $  

 

Note 4. Notes and Bonds Payable 

The following schedule summarizes total notes and bonds payable for the years ended June 30, 2017 
and 2016:  
 

Additions/ Due Within

2016 Amortization Deductions 2017 One Year

American Bank Note 5,300,000  $          -$                     (1,730,000)  $        3,570,000  $          1,765,000  $    

Total notes 5,300,000              -                       (1,730,000)            3,570,000              1,765,000        

Series 2010 Obligations 43,549,710            -                       -                        43,549,710            -                   

Series 2010 CAB accretion 21,005,210            4,331,927             -                        25,337,137            -                   

Total 2010 Bonds, net 64,554,920            4,331,927             -                        68,886,847            -                   

Series 2011 Obligations 79,999,944            -                       (70,000,000)          9,999,944              -                   

Series 2011 CAB accretion 3,573,728              924,450                -                        4,498,178              -                   

Total 2011 Bonds, net 83,573,672            924,450                (70,000,000)          14,498,122            -                   

Series 2013 Obligations 249,910,000          -                       (4,695,000)            245,215,000          4,800,000        

Total 2013 Bonds, net 249,910,000          -                       (4,695,000)            245,215,000          4,800,000        

TIFIA Bond 2015 51,130                   1,401                    -                        52,531                   -                   

SIB Bond 2015 5,701,479              24,817,374           -                        30,518,853            -                   

SHF Bond 2015 5,701,479              24,817,374           -                        30,518,853            -                   

Series 2015 Bonds 367,575,000          -                       -                        367,575,000          -                   

Total 2015 Bonds, net 379,029,088          49,636,149           -                        428,665,237          

Sub Lien Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 -                        74,690,000           -                        74,690,000            -                   
Sr. Lien Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 358,030,000          -                       -                        358,030,000          385,000           

Total 2016 Bonds, net 358,030,000          74,690,000           -                        432,720,000          385,000           

71E Toll Project Obligation -                        65,000,000           -                        65,000,000            -                   

Total bonds and obligations payable 1,135,097,680       119,892,526         (74,695,000)          1,254,985,206       5,185,000        

Total notes, bonds, and obligations payable 1,140,397,680       119,892,526         (76,425,000)          1,258,555,206       6,950,000        
Net (premium) discount on revenue bonds payable 104,128,955          10,826,977           (8,995,015)            105,960,917          -                   

Total notes, bonds and obligations payable, net 1,244,526,635       130,719,503  $     (85,420,015)  $      1,364,516,123       6,950,000  $    

Less current maturities of notes and bonds payable (6,425,000)            (6,950,000)            
Total 1,238,101,635  $   1,357,566,123  $   
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Note 4. Notes and Bonds Payable (Continued) 

Additions/ Due Within

2015 Amortization Deductions 2016 One Year

2011 Draw Down Note 1,730,258  $          -$                     (1,730,258)  $        -$                      -$                 

2015 Draw Down Note -                        21,039,752           (21,039,752)          -                        -                   

American Bank Note 5,300,000              -                       -                        5,300,000              1,730,000        
Total notes 7,030,258              21,039,752           (22,770,010)          5,300,000              1,730,000        

Series 2010 Obligations 94,739,710            -                       (51,190,000)          43,549,710            -                   
Series 2010 CAB accretion 16,981,598            4,023,612             -                        21,005,210            -                   

Total 2010 Bonds, net 111,721,308          4,023,612             (51,190,000)          64,554,920            -                   

Series 2011 Obligations 375,929,944          -                       (295,930,000)        79,999,944            -                   
Series 2011 CAB accretion 2,756,230              817,498                -                        3,573,728              -                   

Total 2011 Bonds, net 378,686,174          817,498                (295,930,000)        83,573,672            -                   

Series 2013 Obligations 285,085,000          -                       (35,175,000)          249,910,000          4,695,000        
Total 2013 Bonds, net 285,085,000          -                       (35,175,000)          249,910,000          4,695,000        

TIFIA Bonds 2015 -                        51,130                  -                        51,130                   -                   
SIB Bond 2015 -                        5,701,479             -                        5,701,479              -                   

SHF Bond 2015 -                        5,701,479             -                        5,701,479              -                   
Series 2015 Bonds -                        367,575,000         -                        367,575,000          -                   

Total Series 2015 Bonds -                        379,029,088         -                        379,029,088          

Sr. Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 -                        358,030,000         -                        358,030,000          -                   
Total 2016 Bonds, net -                        358,030,000         -                        358,030,000          -                   
Total bonds payable 775,492,482          741,900,198         (382,295,000)        1,135,097,680       4,695,000        

Total notes, bonds and obligations payable 782,522,740          762,939,950         (405,065,010)        1,140,397,680       6,425,000        

Net (premium) discount on revenue bonds payable 12,340,215            93,048,445           (1,259,705)            104,128,955          -                   

Total notes, bonds and obligations payable, net 794,862,955          855,988,395  $     (406,324,715)  $    1,244,526,635       6,425,000  $    

Less current maturities of notes and bonds payable (6,905,258)            (6,425,000)            
Total 787,957,697  $      1,238,101,635  $   

 
The Series 2010 Obligations, the Series 2011 Obligations, the Series 2013 Obligations, the Series 2015 
Obligations and the Series 2016 Obligations, each as further described below, were issued pursuant to a 
bond indenture between the Authority and the trustee named therein, and are secured by and payable 
from the trust estate established thereby, in the manner described in and subject to the terms and 
conditions of the bond indenture. 
 
Series 2010 Obligations: The Authority issued its Series 2010 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds and Taxable 
Series 2010 Subordinate Lien Revenue Build America Bonds (Series 2010 Subordinate Lien BABs) on 
March 1, 2010, collectively called the Series 2010 Obligations. The Series 2010 Senior Lien Revenue 
Bonds were issued in part as current interest bonds (Series 2010 CIBs) and in part as capital appreciation 
bonds (Series 2010 CABs). The Series 2010 Subordinate Lien BABs were refunded and redeemed in 
whole by the Authority on June 5, 2013.   
 
The proceeds from the Series 2010 Obligations were used to (i) finance a portion of the costs of the 183A 
Phase II Project; (ii) currently refund and redeem, in whole, the Authority’s outstanding Revenue Notes, 
Taxable Series 2009; (iii) pay capitalized interest with respect to the Series 2010 Obligations; (iv) make a 
deposit to the Senior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund and the Subordinate Lien Debt Service Reserve 
Fund and (v) pay certain issuance costs of the Series 2010 Obligations.  
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Note 4. Notes and Bonds Payable (Continued) 

The Series 2010 CIBs are scheduled to mature in 2019 through 2020. Interest on the Series 2010 CIBs is 
calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of 12, 30-day months at the rate of 5.75 percent. Interest on the 
Series 2010 CIBs is payable on each July 1 and January 1, commencing July 1, 2010. During fiscal year 
2016, $51.2 million in principal amount of the Series 2010 CIBs were refunded from a portion of the 
proceeds from the Series 2016 Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, 
the outstanding principal amount was $8.5 million for each year. 
 
The Series 2010 CABs are scheduled to mature in 2025 through 2040 at an aggregated maturity amount 
of $176.1 million. The principal amount of $34.9 million of the Series 2010 CABs represents the total 
amount of outstanding principal before the accreted and compounded interest as of June 30, 2017 and 
2016. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the aggregate maturity amount is $34.9 million plus the accretion of 
$25.3 million and $21.1 million, respectively. 
 
Interest on the Series 2010 CABs will accrete from the date of initial delivery to stated maturity at rates 
ranging from 7.20 percent to 7.85 percent and will compound on each July 1 and January 1, commencing 
July 1, 2010. Such accreted and compounded interest will be paid as part of the maturity amount at 
stated maturity. 
 
The amount of accumulated accreted interest on the Series 2010 CABs as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 is 
$25.3 million and $21.1 million, respectively. The accumulated accreted interest is added to the 
outstanding principal on July 1 and January 1 of each year beginning July 1, 2010. 
 
Series 2011 Obligations: The Authority issued its Series 2011 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds and Series 
2011 Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds on June 29, 2011, collectively called the Series 2011 Obligations. 
The Series 2011 Senior Lien Revenue Bonds were issued in part as current interest bonds (Series 2011 
CIBs) and in part as capital appreciation bonds (Series 2011 CABs). 
 
A portion of the proceeds from the Series 2011 Obligations was used to (i) prepay a State Infrastructure 
Bank loan in full, (ii) redeem the Authority’s Series 2010 Notes in whole, (iii) pay capitalized interest with 
respect to the Series 2011 Obligations, (iv) make a deposit to the Senior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund 
and the Subordinate Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund and (v) pay certain issuance costs of the Series 
2011 Obligations. The remaining proceeds of the Series 2011 Obligations were used to finance a portion 
of the costs of the Manor Expressway Phase II Project and as otherwise authorized in the Indenture.  
 
During fiscal year 2016, the Series 2011 CIBs were refunded in full in the principal amount of 
$295.9 million from a portion of the proceeds from the Series 2016 Senior Lien Revenue Refunding 
Bonds. The Series 2011 CIBs were scheduled to mature starting in 2026 through 2046. Interest on the 
Series 2011 CIBs is calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of 12, 30-day months at rates ranging from 
5.75 percent to 6.25 percent. Interest on the Series 2011 CIBs was payable on each July 1 and 
January 1, commencing January 1, 2012.  
 
The Series 2011 CABs are scheduled to mature starting in 2022 through 2026 at an aggregated maturity 
amount of $22.1 million. The principal amount of $9.9 million for the Series 2011 CABs represents the 
total amount of outstanding principal before the accreted and compounded interest as of June 30, 2017 
and 2016. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the aggregate maturity amount was $9.9 million plus the 
accretion of $4.5 million and $3.5 million, respectively. 
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Interest on the Series 2011 CABs will accrete from the date of initial delivery to stated maturity at rates 
ranging from 5.9 percent to 6.5 percent and will compound on each July 1 and January 1, commencing 
July 1, 2011. Such accreted and compounded interest will be paid as part of the maturity amount at 
stated maturity. 
 
The amount of accumulated accreted interest on the Series 2011 CABs as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 
was $4.5 million and $3.5 million, respectively. The accumulated accreted interest is added to the 
outstanding principal on July 1 and January 1 of each year beginning July 1, 2011. 
 
During fiscal year 2017, the Series 2011 Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds were refunded in full in the 
principal amount of $70.0 million with a portion of the proceeds from the Series 2016 Subordinate Lien 
Revenue Refunding Bonds. The Series 2011 Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds were issued as current 
interest bonds and were scheduled to mature starting in 2023 through 2041. Interest on the Series 2011 
Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds is calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of 12, 30-day months at 
the rate of 6.75 percent. Interest on the Series 2011 Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds is payable on each 
July 1 and January 1, commencing January 1, 2012. As of June 30, 2016, the outstanding principal 
amount was $70.0 million. 
 
Series 2013 Obligations: The Authority issued its Series 2013A Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds 
(Series 2013A Senior Lien Bonds), Series 2013B Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Put Bonds (Series 
2013B Senior Lien Put Bonds) and Series 2013 Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds (Series 
2013 Subordinate Lien Bonds), collectively called the Series 2013 Obligations, on May 16, 2013. 
 
The proceeds from the Series 2013 Obligations were used to (i) refund in full the Authority’s Series 2005 
Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, the Authority’s 2005 TIFIA Bond, and the Authority’s Series 2010 
Subordinate Lien BABs, (ii) make a deposit to the Subordinate Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund and 
(iii) pay certain issuance costs of the Series 2013 Obligations. 
 
The Series 2013A Senior Lien Bonds were issued as current interest bonds and are scheduled to mature 
on dates ranging from 2016 through 2043. Interest on the Series 2013A Senior Lien Bonds is calculated 
on the basis of a 360-day year of 12, 30-day months at a rate of 5 percent. Interest on the Series 2013A 
Senior Lien Bonds is payable on each July 1 and January 1, commencing July 1, 2013. As of June 30, 
2017 and 2016, the outstanding principal amount was $143.7 million and $147.9 million, respectively. 
 
The Series 2013B Senior Lien Put Bonds were issued as current interest bonds and as variable rate 
obligations and were scheduled to mature starting in 2039 through 2045. Through the period that 
commenced on the issuance date thereof and ending on January 3, 2016 (initial multiannual rate period), 
the Series 2013B Senior Lien Put Bonds accrued interest at a rate of 3 percent per annum. Interest on 
the Series 2013B Senior Lien Put Bonds during the initial multiannual rate period was payable on each 
July 1 and January 1, commencing July 1, 2013. During fiscal year 2016 and prior to the end of the initial 
multiannual rate period, the Series 2013B Senior Lien Put Bonds were refunded in full in the principal 
amount of $30.0 million with a portion of the proceeds from the Series 2015B Senior Lien Revenue and 
Refunding Put Bonds.  
 
The Series 2013 Subordinate Lien Bonds were issued as current interest bonds and are scheduled to 
mature in 2016 through 2042. Interest on the Series 2013 Subordinate Lien Bonds is calculated on the 
basis of a 360-day year of 12, 30-day months at the rate of 5 percent. Interest on the Series 2013 
Subordinate Lien Bonds is payable on each July 1 and January 1, commencing July 1, 2013. As of 
June 30, 2017 and 2016, the outstanding principal amount was $101.5 million and $102.0 million, 
respectively.  
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Series 2015 Obligations: The Authority issued its Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2015A (the Series 
2015A Bonds) and its Senior Lien Revenue and Refunding Put Bonds, Series 2015B (the Series 2015B 
Bonds) on November 19, 2015. The Authority issued its Subordinate Lien Revenue Bond, Taxable Series 
2015C (the 2015C TIFIA Bond), its Subordinate Lien Revenue Bond , Taxable Series 2015D (the 2015D 
SHF Bond), and its Subordinate Lien Revenue Bond, Taxable Series 2015E (the 2015E SIB Bond) on 
November 18, 2015. The Series 2015A Bonds, the Series 2015B Bonds, the 2015C TIFIA Bond, the 
2015D SHF Bond and the 2015E SIB Bond are collectively referred to as the Series 2015 Obligations. 
 
A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2015 Obligations will be used to finance and refinance the costs of 
designing, engineering, developing and constructing the 183 South Project. The remaining proceeds of 
the Series 2015 Obligations were used to (i) refund and redeem in whole the Authority's outstanding 
Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Put Bonds, Series 2013B, (ii) prepay in whole the Authority's outstanding 
2015 Draw Down Note, (iii) pay capitalized interest with respect to the Series 2015A Bonds, (iv) make 
deposits to the Senior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund and (v) pay certain issuance costs of the Series 
2015 Obligations. 
 
Series 2015A Bonds: The Series 2015A Bonds were issued as current interest bonds and are scheduled 
to mature in 2025 through 2045. Interest on the Series 2015A Bonds is calculated on the basis of a 
360-day year of 12, 30-day months at a rate of 5 percent. Interest on the Series 2015A Bonds is payable 
on each July 1 and January 1, commencing January 1, 2016. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the 
outstanding principal amount was $298.8 million for both years. 
 
Series 2015B Bonds: The Series 2015B Bonds were issued as current interest bonds and as variable 
rate obligations and are scheduled to mature on January 1, 2045. Through the period that commenced on 
the issuance date thereof and ends on January 6, 2021 (initial multiannual rate period), the Series 2015B 
Bonds will bear interest at a rate of 5 percent. On January 7, 2021, the Series 2015B Bonds are subject 
to mandatory tender at a purchase price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to 
such purchase date. If, on such date, all Series 2015B Bonds are not successfully remarketed, the 
Authority has no obligation to purchase such Bonds on such date, and all Series 2015B Bonds will 
continue to be outstanding and will bear interest at a rate of 9 percent per annum until subsequently 
remarketed. 
 
Interest on the Series 2015B Bonds during the initial multiannual rate period is calculated on the basis of 
a 360-day year of 12, 30-day months and is payable on each January 1 and July 1, commencing 
January 1, 2016. Pursuant to the terms of the bond indenture, the Series 2015B Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase and conversion to another interest rate mode at the times stated therein. 
As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the outstanding principal amount was $68.8 million for both years. 
 
2015C TIFIA Bond: In November 2015, the Authority entered into a secured loan agreement (the TIFIA 
Loan Agreement) with the United States Department of Transportation, pursuant to which the Authority is 
authorized to borrow an amount not to exceed $282,200,885 to pay eligible projects costs of the 
183 South Project. The Authority’s obligation to repay amounts borrowed under the TIFIA Loan 
Agreement is evidenced by the 2015C TIFIA Bond. The 2015C TIFIA Bond bears interest at 3.08 percent 
per annum and the final maturity date thereof will be the earlier of (i) the date this is 35 years from the 
date of substantial completion of the 183 South Project and (ii) July 1, 2049. Payments of principal and 
interest due on the 2015C TIFIA Bond are payable in the amounts set forth in the TIFIA Loan Agreement 
on each January 1 and July 1, commencing on the earlier of (i) July 1, 2024 and (ii) the semiannual 
payment date on (or immediately preceding) the fifth anniversary of the date of substantial completion of 
the 183 South Project.  
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The Authority received loan proceeds of $51,130 during fiscal year 2016 under the TIFIA Loan 
Agreement. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016 the 2015C TIFA Bond had an outstanding balance of $52,531 
and $51,130, respectively. 
 
2015D SHF Bond: In November 2015, the Authority entered into a secured loan agreement (the SHF 
Loan Agreement) with the TxDOT, pursuant to which the Authority is authorized to borrow an amount not 
to exceed $30 million to pay eligible projects costs of the 183 South Project. The Authority’s obligation to 
repay amounts borrowed under the SHF Loan Agreement is evidenced by the 2015D SHF Bond. Interest 
on the 2015D SHF Bond is payable on each January 1 and July 1, commencing July 1, 2020, and 
installments of principal thereof are payable on each July 1, commencing July 1, 2025 in the amounts set 
forth in the SHF Loan Agreement. The 2015D SHF Bond bears interest at 4 percent per annum and the 
final maturity date thereof is July 1, 2049. 
 
The Authority received loan proceeds of $24.3 million and $5.7 million during fiscal year 2017 and 2016, 
respectively, under the SHF Loan Agreement. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the 2015D SHF Bond had 
an outstanding balance of $30.5 million and $5.7 million, respectively. As of June 30, 2017, the 2015D 
SHF Bond balance included accrued interest of approximately $500,000.  
 
2015E SIB Bond: In November 2015, the Authority entered into a secured loan agreement (the SIB Loan 
Agreement) with the TxDOT, pursuant to which the Authority is authorized to borrow an amount not to 
exceed $30 million to pay eligible projects costs of the 183 South Project. The Authority’s obligation to 
repay amounts borrowed under the SIB Loan Agreement is evidenced by the 2015E SIB Bond. Interest 
on the 2015E SIB Bond is payable on each January 1 and July 1, commencing July 1, 2020, and 
installments of principal thereof are payable on each July 1, commencing July 1, 2025 in the amounts set 
forth in the SIB Loan Agreement. The 2015E SIB Bond bears interest at 4 percent per annum and the 
final maturity date thereof is July 1, 2049. 
 
The Authority received loan proceeds of $24.3 million and $5.7 million during fiscal year 2017 and 2016, 
respectively, under the SIB Loan Agreement. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the 2015E SIB Bond had an 
outstanding balance of 30.5 million and $5.7 million, respectively. As of June 30, 2017, the 2015E SIB 
Bond balance included accrued interest of approximately $500,000.  
 
Series 2016 Obligations: On August 1, 2016, the Authority issued its Series 2016 Subordinate Lien 
Revenue Refunding Bonds (2016 Subordinate Lien Bonds) and on June 1, 2016 the Authority issued its 
Series 2016 Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds (2016 Senior Lien Bonds), collectively called the 
Series 2016 Obligations. The proceeds of the Series 2016 Senior Lien Bonds were used to (i) refund a 
portion of the Series 2010 CIBs and portions of the Series 2011 CIBs and (ii) pay issuance costs of the 
Series 2016 Senior Lien Bonds. 
 
The 2016 Subordinate Lien Bonds were issued as current interest bonds and are scheduled to mature in 
2018 through 2041. Interest on the 2016 Subordinate Lien Bonds is calculated on the basis of a 360-day 
year of 12, 30-day months at rates ranging from 3.125 percent to 5.000 percent. Interest on the 2016 
Subordinate Lien Bonds is payable on each July 1 and January 1, commencing January 1, 2017. As of 
June 30, 2017, the outstanding principal amount was $74.69 million. 
 
The 2016 Senior Lien Bonds were issued as current interest bonds and are scheduled to mature in 2020 
through 2046. Interest on the 2016 Senior Lien Bonds is calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of 12, 
30-day months at rates ranging from 3.375 percent to 5.000 percent. Interest on the 2016 Senior Lien 
Bonds is payable on each July 1 and January 1, commencing July 1, 2016. As of June 30, 2017 and 
2016, the outstanding principal amount was $358.0 million for both years.  
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As a result of the 2016 Senior Lien Bonds noted above, the Authority will realize a total decrease of 
$62.2 million in debt service payments over the life of the bonds and recognized a deferred outflow of 
resources of $74.8 million in fiscal year 2016. Through this refunding, the Authority obtained an economic 
gain (difference between the present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of 
$44.0 million. 
 
As a result of the 2016 Subordinate Lien Bonds noted above, the Authority will realize a total decrease of 
$23.7 million in debt service payments over the life of the bonds and total deferred outflow of resources of 
$19.4 million. Through this refunding, the Authority obtained an economic gain (difference between the 
present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $15.0 million. 
 
2011 Draw Down Note: In December 2011, the Authority entered into a secured loan agreement with a 
bank for a secured draw down note facility in an aggregate amount up to $5.0 million (the 2011 Draw 
Down Note). 
 
The 2011 Draw Down Note matured on December 15, 2015 and required monthly interest payments on 
outstanding balances. Interest was payable on the 2011 Draw Down Note at the one-month LIBOR rate 
plus 2.85 percent. Certain funds of the Authority were collateral for the 2011 Draw Down Note.  
 
Proceeds from the 2011 Draw Down Note were used to pay (i) expenses of studying the cost, design, 
engineering, and feasibility of transportation projects; (ii) expenses associated with securing the 2011 
Draw Down Note and (iii) the reimbursement to the Authority of costs attributable to certain preliminary 
cost and feasibility and other expenses relating to the preparation of financing of the transportation 
projects incurred prior to the execution of the 2011 Draw Down Note. 
 
During fiscal year 2016, the 2011 Drawn Down Note was repaid in full with principal and interest 
payments of $1.7 million. 
 
American Bank Note: In June 2013, the Authority entered into a secured loan agreement with a bank for 
an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $5,300,000 (the Loan). The Loan bears interest at 
2.25 percent per annum and matures on January 1, 2019. The Loan requires semiannual interest 
payments on the outstanding balance starting January 1, 2013. Certain funds of the Authority are 
collateral for the Loan.  
 
Proceeds from the Loan are to be used to pay (i) expenses of studying the cost, design, engineering and 
feasibility of transportation projects; (ii) expenses associated with securing the Loan and (iii) the 
reimbursement to the Authority of costs attributable to certain preliminary cost and feasibility and other 
expenses relating to the preparation of financing of the transportation projects incurred prior to the 
execution of the Loan. 
 
The Loan had an outstanding balance of $3.6 million and $5.3 million as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. 
 
2015 Draw Down Note: In September 2015, the Authority entered into a secured loan agreement with a 
bank for a secured draw down note facility in an aggregate amount not to exceed $75.0 million (the 
2015 Draw Down Note). 
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Proceeds from the 2015 Draw Down Note were used to pay (i) engineering, design and construction 
costs of the 183 South Project, (ii) costs associated with securing the 2015 Draw Down Note and (iii) the 
reimbursement to the Authority of costs attributable to certain preliminary cost and feasibility and other 
expenses relating to the preparation of financing of the 183 South Project incurred prior to the execution 
and delivery of the 2015 Draw Down Note. 
 
During fiscal year 2016, the Authority received loan proceeds under the 2015 Draw Down Note of 
$21.0 million. During fiscal year 2016, the 2015 Draw Down Note was repaid in full with a portion of the 
proceeds from the Series 2015A Senior Lien Revenue Bonds. Prior to the repayment thereof, interest was 
payable on the 2015 Draw Down Note at a rate of 0.70 percent. Certain funds of the Authority were collateral 
for the 2015 Draw Down Note. 
 
71E Toll Project Obligation to TxDOT: The Authority, the Capitol Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization and TxDOT approved the execution of a Project Agreement (the SH 71 Agreement) for the 
development of toll lanes on SH 71 extending from Presidential Boulevard to just east of SH 130, 
including the realignment of FM 973 where that road intersects with SH 71 (the SH 71 Project). 
 
Pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Authority’s Board, the Authority has waived and declined to 
exercise its option to develop, finance, and construct the SH 71 Project, and has retained (and did not 
waive) its option to operate any potential toll lanes on the SH 71 Project and to retain the revenues 
generated therefrom. Upon completion of the SH 71 Project, the SH 71 Agreement obligates the Authority 
to operate and maintain the toll lanes and related infrastructure of the SH 71 Project developed, financed 
and constructed by TxDOT. The Authority will retain the revenues generated from the SH 71 Project, 
which revenues will be used to pay operation and maintenance costs of the toll lanes, toll facilities and 
related equipment, and one-half of the remaining revenues from the SH 71 Project must be used to 
reimburse TxDOT for up to $65.0 million of the costs of the SH 71 Project (the TxDOT Reimbursement 
Amount), plus interest thereon at 3.62 percent per annum, compounded annually. The SH 71 Agreement 
obligates the Authority to repay the TxDOT Reimbursement Amount solely from one-half of the net 
revenues of the SH 71 Project over a 35-year term, with the first payment being due on the first 
anniversary of substantial completion of the SH 71 Project and continuing every year thereafter for a total 
of 35 years or until the TxDOT Reimbursement Amount and all accrued interest is paid.  
 
Under the SH 71 Agreement, TxDOT is obligated to operate and maintain all other aspects of the 
SH 71 Project, including but not limited to, the general purpose lanes and the FM 973 realigned 
intersection with SH 71. 
 
As of June 30, 2017, the toll lanes of the SH 71 Project are operational and the Authority recorded a 
capital contribution of $96.0 million and a note payable to TxDOT of $65.0 million. The SH 71 Project was 
substantially completed on March 8, 2017, and, accordingly, the first payment payable by the Authority to 
TxDOT under the SH 71 Agreement is due on March 8, 2018. 
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2016 SHF SH 45SW Loan:  In October 2016, the Authority entered into a secured loan agreement (the 
SHF SH 45SW Loan Agreement) with TxDOT, pursuant to which the Authority is authorized to borrow an 
amount not to exceed $60 million to pay eligible project costs of the SH 45 Southwest Project. Interest on 
amounts borrowed under the SHF SH 45SW Loan Agreement (i) will accrete at 4 percent per annum, 
compounding semi-annually on each January 1 and July 1, until the January 1 or July 1 which is six 
months prior to the initial interest payment date, and (ii) is payable on each January 1 and July 1, 
commencing on the first January 1 or July 1 closest to the fifth anniversary of the initial disbursement 
made under the SHF SH 45SW Loan Agreement. Principal installment payments are due on amounts 
borrowed under the SHF SH 45SW Loan Agreement on each January 1, commencing on the January 1 
closest to the tenth anniversary of the initial disbursement made under the SHF SH 45SW Loan 
Agreement, in the amounts set forth therein. Amounts borrowed under the SHF SH 45SW Loan 
Agreement will bear interest at 4 percent per annum and the final maturity date thereof is January 1, 
2049. The Authority may defer up to 25 percent of the principal and interest due on any principal or 
interest payment date, not to exceed two years and not past the final maturity date. The net revenues 
from the SH 45 Southwest Project have been pledged as collateral for amounts borrowed under the SHF 
SH 45SW Loan Agreement. 
 
As of June 30, 2017, no amounts had been borrowed under the SHF SH 45SW Loan Agreement and, 
accordingly, no amount was outstanding. 
 
Future payments on debt obligations: Future payments of principal and interest on the Authority’s 
bonds and notes described in this Note 4 (based on the scheduled payments) as of June 30, 2017, are as 
follows: 
 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2018 5,185,000  $           51,458,700  $         -$                  -$                    1,765,000  $     80,325  $          
2019 7,425,000               51,694,925             -                    -                      1,805,000         40,613              
2020 14,460,000             51,393,175             -                    -                      -                    -                    
2021 15,965,000             50,998,663             -                    -                      -                    2,749,534         
2022 18,105,000             49,958,950             -                    -                      -                    2,749,534         
2022-2026 100,695,000           234,528,000           480,449            404,551              680,575            13,722,720       
2027-2031 163,870,000           204,501,250           19,457,849       32,777,151         10,079,020       12,445,998       
2032-2036 225,835,000           156,838,688           13,165,369       44,324,631         12,255,532       10,418,158       
2037-2041 289,490,000           95,077,650             8,342,708         46,772,292         14,909,546       7,711,066         
2042-2046 213,030,000           25,973,000             3,553,280         28,971,720         18,143,754       4,415,772         
2047-2051 -                         -                         -                    -                      5,021,810         776,560            

1,054,060,000  $    972,423,001  $       44,999,655  $   153,250,345  $   64,660,237  $   55,110,280  $   

Notes PayableCurrent Interest Bonds Capital Appreciation Bonds
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Principal Interest

2018 6,950,000  $           51,539,025  $         
2019 9,230,000               51,735,538             
2020 14,460,000             51,393,175             
2021 15,965,000             53,748,197             
2022 18,105,000             52,708,484             
2022-2026 101,856,024           248,655,271           
2027-2031 193,406,869           249,724,399           
2032-2036 251,255,901           211,581,477           
2037-2041 312,742,254           149,561,008           
2042-2046 234,727,034           59,360,492             
2047-2051 5,021,810               776,560                  

Total 1,163,719,892        1,180,783,626  $    

71E Obligation 65,000,000             
Accreted interest 29,835,314             

94,835,314             
1,258,555,206  $    

Total Debt Service

 
As described above, the Series 2010 CABs and the Series 2011 CABs were issued as capital 
appreciation bonds. The accreted interest on the Series 2010 CABs and 2011 CABS are reflected on the 
Statement of Net Position as additional principal and is reflected in the interest column in this table in the 
amount of $29,835,314.  
 
Other debt matters: The Authority’s outstanding Senior Lien and Subordinate Lien Bonds require the 
Authority to comply with debt service coverage ratios as defined within the Master Trust Indenture for its 
outstanding Bonds. The Authority’s management believes it is compliant with all significant provisions of 
the Master Trust Indenture. Under the Indenture, the Authority is required to establish and maintain toll 
rates sufficient to produce Net Revenues sufficient to pay Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio of at 
least 1.40 with respect to Senior Lien Obligations; 1.20 with respect to Senior Lien Obligations and Junior 
Lien Obligations and 1.20 with respect to Senior Lien Obligations Junior Lien Obligations and Subordinate 
Lien Obligations and 1.00 with respect to all Obligations. 
 

Note 5. Deferred Outflow and Inflow of Resources 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position, the Authority has classified the difference between the 
reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the defeased debt as a deferred outflow of resources. 
The deferred outflow of resources is amortized over the term of the defeased bonds and recognized as a 
component of interest expense annually. The Authority has also deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources for certain pension related items in accordance with applicable pension standards as noted 
under Note 8.  
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Note 5. Deferred Outflow and Inflow of Resources (Continued) 

The Authority’s deferred outflow of resources balance is composed of the following: 
 

2017 2016

Deferred outflows from bond refundings 109,030,108  $  90,876,005  $  
Employer pension contribution 227,392             202,873           
Difference in pension investment assumption 418,615             502,269           
Experience changes 32,857               37,553             
Assumption changes 32,699               37,369             

109,741,671  $  91,656,069  $  

June 30

 
The Authority’s deferred inflow of resources balance is composed of the following: 
 

2017 2016

Experience changes 286,449  $       172,017  $       

June 30

 

Note 6. Rebatable Arbitrage 

Current federal income tax law and the bond indentures require that certain arbitrage profits earned on 
nonpurpose investments attributable to outstanding tax-exempt bonds must be rebated to the United 
States Treasury. The Authority has not accrued any rebatable arbitrage as of June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 

Note 7. Risk Management 

In conjunction with its normal operations, the Authority is exposed to various risks related to the damage 
or destruction of its assets from both natural and man-made occurrences; tort/liability claims; errors and 
omissions claims; and professional liability claims. As a result of these exposures, the Authority carries 
insurance with a governmental risk pool under an “all risks” policy. All categories of insurance coverage in 
place were either maintained at current levels or increased as to overall limits of coverage and reduction 
of self-retained risk so as to reduce the overall exposure of risk to the Authority. There were no 
settlements in excess of insurance coverage during fiscal years 2017 and 2016. 
 

Note 8. Employee Retirement Plan 

Plan description: The Authority participates in Texas Counties and District Retirement System (TCDRS). 
TCDRS is a statewide, agent multiple-employer, public employee retirement system. TCDRS is a non-
profit public trust providing pension, disability and death benefits for the eligible employees of participating 
counties and districts. TCDRS was established by legislative act in 1967 under authority of Article XVI of 
the Texas Constitution. The TCDRS Act (Subtitle F, Title 8, Texas Government Code) is the basis for 
TCDRS administration. TCDRS issues a publicly available annual financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the plan. That annual report may be downloaded at 
http://www.tcdrs.com. 
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Benefits provided: Effective the date of participation, the Authority provides retirement, disability and 
death benefits. A percentage of each employee’s paycheck is deposited into his or her TCDRS account. 
That percentage has been set by the Authority at 7 percent and has elected a matching rate of $2 to $1. 
The employee’s savings grow at a rate of 7 percent, compounded annually. At retirement, the employee’s 
account balance is combined with the Authority’s matching and converted into a lifetime monthly benefit. 
Employees receive a month of service time for each month that they make a deposit into their account. 
The amount of service an employee needs to earn a future benefit is called the vesting requirement. 
When an employee is vested, he or she has the right to a monthly benefit, which includes the employer 
matching contribution, at age 60 or older. 
 
The Authority adopted a 10 year/Age 60 Retirement Eligibility described in Section 844.207 of the TCDRS 
Act, under which: (a) any TCDRS member who has 10 or more years of service credit with the District 
and other subdivisions that have adopted the provisions of Section 844.207 or 844.210, is a vested 
member and shall have the right to retire and receive a service retirement annuity after attaining age 60, 
unless the optional 8 year/age 60 Retirement Eligibility and/or Optional Rule 75 Retirement Eligibility is 
adopted, as allowed by the plan. The Authority has adopted both the Optional 8 year/Age 60 Retirement 
Eligibility, which allows an 8-year service eligibility requirement for vesting, service, and disability 
retirement; and Optional Rule 75, which allows the member to have the right to retire and receive service 
retirement annuity when years of such credited service added to his or her years of attained age equal or 
exceed 75. 
 
Any TCDRS member who is a vested member may terminate employment with all participating 
subdivisions prior to attaining age 60, and remain eligible to retire and receive a service retirement 
annuity after attaining age 60 provided his or her membership is not terminated other than by retirement. 
 
Any TCDRS member who is a vested member under Section 844.207(d) may retire and receive a 
disability retirement annuity if he or she is certified as disabled, as defined by the plan. 
 
Any TCDRS member who has four or more years of service credit with the District and other subdivisions 
is eligible for purposes of the Survivor Annuity Death Benefit.  
 
Retirees elect to receive their lifetime benefit by choosing one of seven actuarially equivalent payment 
options. Prior service gives employees monetary credit for time worked for an eligible organization before 
it joined the system. Buybacks allow current employees to re-establish a closed TCDRS account from 
previous service with an employer. Partial lump sum payments at retirement allow employees to withdraw 
part of their TCDRS account balance as a lump sum at retirement with a reduced monthly benefit. In 
addition, the Authority may choose to adopt a cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) for its retirees. This 
adjusts retiree benefits to restore purchasing power lost due to the effects of inflation. 
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Note 8. Employee Retirement Plan (Continued) 

Employees covered by benefit terms: The following employees were covered by the benefit terms as of 
the valuation date December 31: 
 

2016 2015

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 2 1
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits 11 9
Active employees 24 23

Total 37 33

 
Contributions: Plan members and the Authority are required to contribute at a rate set by statute. The 
contribution requirements of plan members and the Authority are established and may be amended. For 
2017 and 2016, the contribution rate for the plan members was 7 percent of gross pay. The Authority 
pays a matching portion to the pension plan totaling 14 percent of gross pay for 2017 and 2016, which 
totaled $446,675 and $389,889, respectively. 
 
Net pension liability: The Authority’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2016 and 
2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of that date. 
 
Actuarial assumptions: The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability as of 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period 
from January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2012, except where required to be different by GASB 
Statement No. 68.  
 
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016 and 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using 
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

2016 2015

Inflation 3.0% 3.0%
Salary Increases (including inflation plus average merit of 1.4% and productivity

of 0.5% for 2016 and 2015) 4.9% 4.9%
Investment rate of return 8.1% 8.1%

 
Mortality rates were based on the following: 
 
Depositing members: The RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality Table for males with a two-year set-
forward and the RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality Table for females with a four-year setback, both 
projected to 2014 with scale AA and then projected with 110 percent of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 
that.  
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Note 8. Employee Retirement Plan (Continued) 

Service retirees, beneficiaries and nondepositing members: The RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table 
projected to 2014 with scale AA and then projected with 110 percent of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 
that, with a one-year set-forward for males and no age adjustment for females. 
 
Disabled retirees: RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table projected to 2014 with scale AA and then projected 
with 110 percent of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after with no age adjustment for males and with a two-
year set-forward for females.  
 
Long-term rate of return on assets: The long-term expected rate of return on TCDRS assets is 
determined by adding expected inflation to expected long-term real returns, and reflecting expected 
volatility and correlation. The capital market assumptions and information shown below are provided by 
TCDRS’ investment consultant. The valuation assumption for long-term expected return is re-assessed at 
a minimum of every four years, and is set based on a 30-year time horizon; the most recent analysis was 
performed in 2013.  
 
The capital market assumptions and information shown below are provided by TCDRS’ investment 
consultant based on December 31, 2016, information for a 7-10 year time horizon. 
 

Geometric Real Rate
Target of Return (Expected

Asset Class Benchmark Allocation (1) Minus Inflation) (2)

United States Equities Dow Jones U.S. Total Stock Market Index 13.5% 4.7%
Private Equity Cambridge Associates Global Private Equity and Venture

Capital Index (3) 16.0% 7.7%
Global Equities MSCI World (net) Index 1.5% 5.0%
International Equities—Developed MSCI World Ex USA (net) 10.0% 4.7%
International Equities—Emerging MSCI EM Standard (net) index 7.0% 5.7%
Investment—Grade Bonds Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 3.0% 0.6%
High-Yield Bonds Citigroup High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index 3.0% 3.7%
Opportunistic Credit Citigroup High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index 2.0% 3.8%
Direct Lending S&P/LSTA Leveraged Loan Index 10.0% 8.2%
Distressed Debt Cambridge Associates Distressed Index 3.0% 6.7%
REIT Equities 67% FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs Index plus 33%

FRSE EPRA/NAREIT Global Real Estate Index 2.0% 3.9%
Master Limited Partnerships (MLPs) Alerian MLP Index 3.0% 5.6%
Private Real Estate Partnerships Cambridge Associates Real Estate Index (4) 6.0% 7.2%
Hedge Funds Hedge Fund Research, Inc. Fund of Funds Composite

Index 20.0% 3.9%
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Note 8. Employee Retirement Plan (Continued) 

The capital market assumptions and information shown below are provided by TCDRS’ investment 
consultant based on December 31, 2015, information for a 7-10 year time horizon. 

Geometric Real Rate
Target of Return (Expected

Asset Class Benchmark Allocation (1) Minus Inflation) (2)

United States Equities Dow Jones U.S. Total Stock Market Index 14.5% 5.5%
Private Equity Cambridge Associates Global Private Equity and Venture

Capital Index (3) 14.0% 8.5%
Global Equities MSCI World (net) Index 1.5% 5.8%
International Equities—Developed MSCI World Ex USA (net) 10.0% 5.5%
International Equities—Emerging MSCI World Ex USA (net) 8.0% 6.5%
Investment—Grade Bonds Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond Index 3.0% 1.0%
High-Yield Bonds Citigroup High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index 3.0% 5.1%
Opportunistic Credit Citigroup High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index 2.0% 5.1%
Direct Lending Citigroup High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index 5.0% 6.4%
Distressed Debt Citigroup High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index 3.0% 8.1%
REIT Equities 67% FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs Index plus 33%

FRSE EPRA/NAREIT Global Real Estate Index 3.0% 4.0%
Master Limited Partnerships (MLPs) Alerian MLP Index 3.0% 6.8%
Private Real Estate Partnerships Cambridge Associates Real Estate Index (4) 5.0% 6.9%
Hedge Funds Hedge Fund Research, Inc. Fund of Funds Composite

Index 25.0% 5.3%

 
(1) Target asset allocation adopted at the April 2017 and 2016 TCDRS Board meetings. 
 
(2) Geometric real rates of return in addition to assumed inflation of 2.0 percent, per investment 

consultant’s 2017 and 2016 capital market assumptions. 
 
(3) Includes vintage years 2006-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs. 
 
(4) Includes vintage years 2007-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs. 
 
Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.1 percent for both  
December 31, 2016 and 2015. In order to determine the discount rate to be used by the employer, the 
TCDRS used an alternative method to determine the sufficiency of the fiduciary net position in all future 
years. The alternative method reflects the funding requirements under the employer’s funding policy and 
the legal requirements under the TCDRS Act. 
 
(1) TCDRS has a funding policy where the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability shall be amortized as a 

level percent of pay over 20-year closed layered periods.  
 
(2) Under the TCDRS Act, the employer is legally required to make the contribution specified in the 

funding policy.  
 
(3) The employer’s assets are projected to exceed its accrued liabilities in 20 years or less. When this 

point is reached, the employer is still required to contribute at least the normal cost.  
 
(4) Any increased cost due to the adoption of a COLA is required to be funded over a period of 

15 years, if applicable.  
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Note 8. Employee Retirement Plan (Continued) 

Changes in net pension liability (asset): Based on the above, the projected fiduciary net position is 
determined to be sufficient compared to projected benefit payments. Based on the expected level of cash 
flows and investment returns to the system, the fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension 
liability is projected to increase from its current level in future years.  
 
Since the projected fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay projected benefit payments in 
all future years, the discount rate for purposes of calculating the total pension liability and net pension 
liability of the Authority is equal to the long-term assumed rate of return on investments. This long-term 
assumed rate of return should be net of investment expenses, but gross of administrative expenses for 
GASB Statement No. 68 purposes. Therefore, the system has used a discount rate of 8.1 percent. This 
rate reflects the long-term assumed rate of return on assets for funding purposes of 8.0 percent, net of all 
expenses, increased by 0.1 percent to be gross of administrative expenses. 
 

Net Pension
Total Pension Fiduciary Net Liability (Asset) 

Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) Liability (a) Position (b) (a) - (b)

Balances as of December 31, 2015 4,870,215  $       5,072,238  $      (202,023)  $             
Changes for the year:

Service cost  636,083              -                    636,083                  
Interest on total pension liability (1) 417,633              -                    417,633                  
Effect of plan changes (2) -                     -                    -                          
Effect of economic/demographic (gains) or losses (152,926)            -                    (152,926)                 
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs -                     -                    -                          
Refund of contributions (37,296)              (37,296)              -                          
Benefit payments (14,389)              (14,389)              -                          
Administrative expenses -                     (4,111)                4,111                      
Member contributions -                     211,078             (211,078)                 
Net investment income -                     378,134             (378,134)                 
Employer contributions -                     422,157             (422,157)                 
Other (3) -                     46,648               (46,648)                   

Balances as of December 31, 2016 5,719,320  $       6,074,459  $      (355,139)  $             

Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) 2016
Increase (Decrease)
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Note 8. Employee Retirement Plan (Continued) 

 

Net Pension
Total Pension Fiduciary Net Liability (Asset) 

Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) Liability (a) Position (b) (a) - (b)

Balances as of December 31, 2014 4,221,814  $       4,696,051  $      (474,237)  $             
Changes for the year:

Service cost  474,778              -                    474,778                  
Interest on total pension liability (1) 361,003              -                    361,003                  
Effect of plan changes (2) (33,691)              -                    (33,691)                   
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (193,519)            -                    (193,519)                 
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs 42,041                -                    42,041                    
Refund of contributions -                     -                    -                          
Benefit payments (2,211)                (2,211)                -                          
Administrative expenses -                     (3,541)                3,541                      
Member contributions -                     180,742             (180,742)                 
Net investment income -                     (162,009)            162,009                  
Employer contributions -                     361,493             (361,493)                 
Other (3) -                     1,713                 (1,713)                     

Balances as of December 31, 2015 4,870,215  $       5,072,238  $      (202,023)  $             

Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) 2015
Increase (Decrease)

 
(1)  Reflects the change in the liability due to the time value of money. TCDRS does not charge fees or 

interest. 
 
(2)  Reflects new annuity purchase rates applicable to all TCDRS employees effective January 1, 2018. 
 
(3)  Relates to allocation of system-wide items. 
 
Sensitivity analysis: The following presents the net pension asset/liability of the Authority, calculated 
using the discount rate of 8.1 percent, as well as what the net pension asset/liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (7.1 percent) or 1 percentage point 
higher (9.1 percent) than the current rate. 
 

Current
1.0% Decrease Discount Rate 1.0% Increase

7.1% 8.1% 9.1%

Total pension liability 6,475,773  $       5,719,320  $       5,088,480  $       
Fiduciary net position 6,073,699           6,074,459           6,073,699           
Net pension liability (asset) 402,074              355,139              (985,219)             

Current
1.0% Decrease Discount Rate 1.0% Increase

7.1% 8.1% 9.1%

Total pension liability 5,549,877  $       4,870,215  $       4,305,697  $       
Fiduciary net position 5,071,480           5,072,238           5,071,480           
Net pension liability (asset) 478,397              (202,023)             (765,783)             

December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015
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Note 8. Employee Retirement Plan (Continued) 

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position 
is available in the separate issued TCDRS report. 
 
Pension expense: the Authority recognized the following pension related expense (income): 
 

January 1, 2016 to January 1, 2015 to
Pension Expense (Income)  December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015

Service cost 636,083  $                         474,778  $                         
Interest on total pension liability (1) 417,633                             361,003                             
Effect of plan changes -                                    (33,691)                              
Administrative expenses 4,111                                 3,541                                 
Member contributions (211,078)                            (180,742)                            
Expected investment return net of investment expenses (435,573)                            (405,263)                            
Recognition of deferred inflows/outflows of resources:
   Recognition of economic/demographic gains or losses (33,798)                              (16,806)                              
   Recognition of assumption changes or inputs 4,671                                 4,671                                 
   Recognition of investment gains or losses 141,093                             129,605                             
Other (2) (46,648)                              (1,713)                                
Pension expense 476,494  $                         335,383  $                         

 
(1) Reflects the change in the liability due to the time value of money. TCDRS does not charge fees or 

interest.  
 
(2)  Relates to allocation of system-wide items.  
 
Deferred inflows and outflows of resources: the deferred inflows and outflows of resources are as 
follows: 
 

Deferred Inflows/ Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows
Outflows of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected 
and actual experience 286,449  $               32,870  $                    172,017  $               37,566  $                    

Changes of assumptions -                           32,698                        -                           37,369                        
Net difference between projected 

and actual earnings -                           418,615                      -                           502,268                      
Contributions made subsequent 

to measurement date -                           227,392                      -                           202,873                      

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
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Note 8. Employee Retirement Plan (Continued) 

Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date are eligible employer contributions made from 
January 1, 2016 through June 30, 2016. Amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, excluding contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement date, will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 
Years ending December 31:

2017 111,966  $       
2018 111,966           
2019 95,815             
2020 (17,639)            
2021 (29,127)            
Thereafter (75,246)            

197,735  $       

 
The remaining balance to be recognized in future years (and included in the thereafter category), if any, 
will be impacted by additional future deferred inflows and outflows of resources. 
 

Amount Balance of Balance of
Original Recognized Deferred Deferred

Original Date Recognition in 12/31/16 Inflows Outflows
Amount Established Period Expenses (1) 12/31/2016 12/31/2016

Investment (gains) losses 57,439  $    12/31/2016 5 years 11,488  $         -$            45,951  $    
Investment (gains) losses 567,272      12/31/2015 5 years 113,454           -              340,363      
Investment (gains) losses 80,751        12/31/2014 5 years 16,150             -              32,300        
Economic/demographic (gains)

or losses (152,926)     12/31/2016 9 years (16,992)            (135,934)     -              
Economic/demographic (gains)

or losses (193,519)     12/31/2015 9 years (21,502)            (150,515)     -              
Economic/demographic (gains)

or losses 46,958        12/31/2014 10 years 4,696               -              32,870        
Assumption changes or inputs -              12/31/2016 9 years -                   -              -              
Assumption changes or inputs 42,041        12/31/2015 9 years 4,671               -              32,698        
Assumption changes or inputs -              12/31/2014 10 years -                   -              -              
Employer contributions made

subsequent to measurement
date 202,873      -                   -                   -              227,392      

Schedule of Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

 
(1) Investment losses are recognized in pension expense over a period of five years; 

economic/demographic losses and assumption changes or inputs are recognized over the average 
remaining service life for all active, inactive and retired members. 
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Note 9. Disaggregation of Receivable and Payable Balances 

Due from other governments are comprised of current intergovernmental receivables and amounts due 
from other Texas tolling authorities related to toll tag transactions on the Authority’s toll roads. The 
Authority does not issue toll tags; however, the Authority has contracted with TxDOT to handle customer 
service and operations related to the toll tag transactions at June 30, 2017 and 2016. Accounts payable 
balances are comprised of 100 percent current payables to contractors and vendors at June 30, 2017 and 
2016.  
 
As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the receivable from TxDOT comprises approximately 82 percent and 
98 percent, respectively, and the total balances are as follows: 
 

2017 2016

TxDOT 13,983,903  $  85,590,015  $  
Other agencies 3,100,027        1,173,644        

Total 17,083,930  $  86,763,659  $  

June 30

 

Note 10. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities  

Commitments: In May 2014, the Authority entered into a 10-year lease agreement for office space. The 
aggregate future minimum lease payments under the new lease are as follows: 
 
Years ending December 31:

2018 347,163  $     
2019 358,932         
2020 370,700         
2021 382,468         
2022 394,236         
Thereafter 336,703         

2,190,202  $  

 
The Authority’s rental expense for fiscal year 2017 and 2016 totaled $544,164 and $411,359, 
respectively, which includes common area maintenance and property taxes. 
 
The Authority has a capital improvement program for roadway construction projects extending into future 
years. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Authority has a capital budget of approximately $1.209 billion 
and $1.202 billion, respectively, for future toll projects, which may or may not materialize. Including the 
US 183 South-Bergstrom Expressway, the Authority’s contractual commitments related to its capital 
improvement plan are approximately $664.0 million and $654.0 million, respectively, for the years ended 
June 30, 2017 and 2016. All contracts contain a termination for convenience clause in which such 
contracts may be terminated, in whole or in part, for the convenience of the Authority. 
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Note 10. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Continued) 

Litigation: As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Authority is involved in various contract disputes on its 
construction projects. Based on the status of the claims and the information available, the Authority 
believes that a liability has not been incurred as of the date of the financial statements. The Authority 
believes it has substantial defenses against these claims and the resolution of these matters will not have 
a material adverse effect on its financial statements. 
 

Note 11. Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 26, 2017, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued.  
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Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority

Required Supplementary Information—Pension Plan
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Assets and Related Ratios
Years Ended December 31

2016 2015 2014
Total pension liability:

Service cost 636,083  $          474,778  $          461,237  $          
Interest on total pension liability 417,633              361,003              295,209              
Effect of plan changes -                      (33,691)               -                      
Effect of assumption changes or inputs -                      42,041                -                      
Effect of economic/demographic (gains) or losses (152,926)             (193,519)             46,943                
Benefit payments/refunds of contributions (51,685)               (2,211)                 -                      

Net change in total pension liability 849,105              648,401              803,389              

Total pension liability at beginning of year 4,870,215           4,221,814           3,418,425           

Total pension liability at end of year (a) 5,719,320           4,870,215           4,221,814           

Fiduciary net position:
Employer contributions 422,157              361,493              327,807              
Member contributions 211,078              180,742              163,979              
Investment income net of investment expense 378,134              (162,009)             261,626              
Benefit payments/refunds of contributions (51,685)               (2,211)                 -                      
Administrative expenses (4,111)                 (3,541)                 (3,345)                 
Other 46,648                1,713                  (242)                    

Net change in fiduciary net position 1,002,221           376,187              749,825              

Fiduciary net position at beginning of year 5,072,238           4,696,051           3,946,226           

Fiduciary net position at end of year (b) 6,074,459           5,072,238           4,696,051           

Net pension asset at end of year = (a) - (b) (355,139)  $         (202,023)  $         (474,237)  $         

Fiduciary net position as a percentage of total 
    pension liability 106.21% 104.15% 111.23%
Pensionable covered payroll 3,015,395  $       2,582,032  $       2,342,556  $       
Net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of
     covered payroll (11.78%) (7.82%) (20.24%)

The Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Assets and related Ratio disclosure is required for 10 years. The 
schedule noted above is only for the years which the new GASB Statements have been implemented. 
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Required Supplementary Information—Pension Plan (Continued)
Schedule of Employer Contributions
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Actual
Actuarially Actual Contribution Pensionable Contribution as

Year Ending Determined Employer Deficiency Covered a Percentage of
December 31, Contribution (1) Contribution (Excess) Payroll (2) Covered Payroll

2007 152,487  $         152,487  $         -$                   1,208,299  $      12.6%
2008 177,644             177,644             -                     1,410,996          12.6%
2009 208,394             224,770             (16,376)              1,605,503          14.0%
2010 212,249             235,472             (23,222)              1,623,942          14.5%
2011 248,565             270,179             (21,614)              1,863,303          14.5%
2012 251,978             286,786             (34,811)              2,048,602          14.0%
2013 261,182             304,447             (43,266)              2,174,701          14.0%
2014 284,621             327,807             (43,187)              2,342,556          14.0%
2015 302,614             361,493             (58,879)              2,582,032          14.0%
2016 341,041             422,157             (81,115)              3,015,395          14.0%

  
(1) TCDRS calculates actuarially determined contributions on a calendar year basis. GASB No. 68 indicates the 

Authority should report contribution amounts on a fiscal year basis.  
 

(2) Payroll is calculated based on contributions as reported to TCDRS. 
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Actuarial methods and assumptions used: Following are the key assumptions and methods used in 
these schedules:  
 

Valuation Timing Actuarially determined contribution rates are 
calculated as of December 31, two years prior 
to the end of the fiscal year in which the 
contributions are reported. 

 
Actuarial Cost Method Individual entry age normal cost method, as 

required by GASB Statement No. 68, used for 
GASB calculations. A slightly different version 
of the entry age normal cost method is used for 
the funding actuarial valuation. 

 
Asset Valuation Method   
 Smoothing period 
 Recognition method 
 Corridor 

5 years  
Non-asymptotic  
None 
 

Economic Assumptions  
 Inflation 
 Salary increases 
 
 
 
 
 Investment rate of return  
 
 COLAs 

 
3.0 percent 
4.9 percent (made up of 3.0 percent inflation and 

0.5 percent productivity increase assumptions) 
and a merit, promotion and longevity 
component that on average approximates 
1.4 percent per year for a career employee. 

 
8.1 percent 
 
COLAs for the Authority are not considered to be 

substantively automatic under GASB 
Statement No. 68. Therefore, no assumption 
for future cost-of-living adjustments is included 
in the GASB calculations. No assumption for 
future cost-of-living adjustments is included in 
the funding valuation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
 
Required Supplementary Information—Pension Plan (Continued) 
Notes to Schedule of Employer Contributions and Net Pension Liability 
June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 

47 

Demographic assumptions—related to December 31, 2016 valuation: 
 

Retirement 
Age Male Female Age Male Female

40-44 4.5% 4.5% 62 25% 25%
45-49 9 9 63 16 16
50 10 10 64 16 16
51 10 10 65 30 30
52 10.5 10.5 66 25 25
53 10.5 10.5 67 24 24
54 10.5 10.5 68 22 22
55 11 11 69 22 22
56 11 11 70 22 22
57 11 11 71 22 22
58 12 12 72 22 22
59 12 12 73 22 22
60 14 14 74 ** 22 22
61 12 12

Annual Rates of Service Retirement*

 
*  Deferred members are assumed to retire (100 percent probability) at the later of: a) age 60 b) earliest 

retirement eligibility. These assumption relate to the December 31, 2015 valuation.  
 
** For all eligible members ages 75 and later, retirement is assumed to occur immediately.  
 
Other terminations of employment: The rate of assumed future termination from active participation in 
the plan for reasons other than death, disability or retirement are all set at 0 percent and the rates do not 
vary by length of service, entry-age group (age at hire), and sex. No termination after eligibility for 
retirement is assumed. 
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Withdrawals: Members who terminate may either elect to leave their account with TCDRS or withdraw 
their funds. The probability that a member elects a withdrawal varies by length of service and vesting 
schedule. Rates applied to your plan are shown in table below. For nondepositing members who are not 
vested, 100 percent are assumed to elect a withdrawal. 
 

Years of Service Probability Years of Service Probability

0 100% 15 40%
1 100 16 38
2 100 17 36
3 100 18 34
4 100 19 32
5 60 20 30
6 60 21 28
7 55 22 26
8 50 23 24
9 49 24 22
10 48 25 20
11 47 26 15
12 46 27 10
13 44 28* 5
14 42

Probability of Withdrawal

 
*Members with more than 28 years of service are not assumed to refund. 
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Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority

Supplemental Information—Indenture Cash Flow and Debt Service Coverage
June 30, 2017

Toll revenues 75,651,364  $     
Other revenues 1,355,008           
Miscellaneous revenue 213,883              
Interest income available to pay debt service 847,178              

Total revenues 78,067,433         
Less system operating expenses (13,210,921)        

Revenues available for rate covenant and additional bonds tests 64,856,512         

Net senior lien debt service 11,854,875  $     
Net subordinate lien debt service 9,754,950           

Total net debt service 21,609,825         

Debt service coverage ratio for rate covenant and additional bonds test:
Senior lien obligations 5.47                    
Senior and subordinate lien obligations 3.00                    
Less  system maintenance expenses (3,347,970)          

Revenues available for debt service 61,508,542         

Senior lien obligations 5.19                    
Senior and subordinate lien obligations 2.85                    
Less total net debt service (21,609,825)        
Less deposits to renewal and replacement fund -                      
Less debt service payments on other obligations -                      

Annual excess 39,898,717  $     

 
* The HERO operating grant revenues are included in “Other Revenues” above as the corresponding expenses 

are included in “System Operating Expenses.”  
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over  
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters  
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in  

Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority  
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Central Texas 
Regional Mobility Authority (the Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2017.   
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weakness 
may exist that have not been identified.   
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, grant agreements, and the Public Funds Investment Act, noncompliance with which could have 
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instance of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards or the Public Funds 
Investment Act.  
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Purpose of This Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Austin, Texas 
September 26, 2017 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance For the Major Federal  
Program, Report on Internal Control Over Compliance and Report  

on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required  
by the Uniform Guidance 

 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority  
 
 
Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 
We have audited Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority’s (the Authority) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on the Authority’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2017. The Authority’s 
major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.   
 
Management’s Responsibility  
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Authority’s major federal program based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance.   

 
Opinion on the Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year 
ended June 30, 2017.  
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with the requirements 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 
above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 
We have audited the financial statements of the Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic 
financial statements. We have issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2017, which contained 
an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of 
forming an opinion on the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance 
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 
 

 
Austin, Texas 
September 26, 2017 
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Central Texas Regional Mobility Authortity

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Federal Pass
CFDA Pass Through Entity Through to Federal

Federal Grantor/Program Title Number Grant Award Number Subrecipients Expenditures 
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster:

United States Department of Transportation:
Pass through Texas Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction—MoPac 20.205 CSJ 3136-01-107 -$                      20,733,431  $       
Highway Planning and Construction—183N Project 20.205 CSJ 0151-05-102 -                        56,573                  
Highway Planning and Construction—183S Project 20.205 CSJ 0151-09-036; 0151-09-127;

0265-01.080 -                        4,129,820             
Highway Planning and Construction—US290W Project 20.205 0113-08-060 -                        333,617                
Highway Planning and Construction—US290W Multi. Projects 20.205 0265-01-080 -                        86,485                  
Highway Planning and Construction—HERO Project 20.205 CSJ 0914-00-358; 0914-00-361 -                        1,090,286             
Highway Planning and Construction—183 and 183A Intersections 20.205 CSJ 0151-04-066 -                        120,000                

Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster -                        26,550,212           

Highway Research and Development—Ridesharing 20.200 CSJ 0914-00-373 -                        16,134                  

Total Federal Expenditures -$                      26,566,346  $       

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
Reporting entity: The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the activity 
of all federal programs administered by Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (the Authority). 
Because this schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is not 
intended to, and does not, present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the 
Authority.   

 
Basis of presentation: The Schedule presents total federal awards expended for each individual 
program and CFDA number in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
 
Basis of accounting: The expenditures for each of the federal financial assistance programs are 
presented on the accrual basis of accounting for the Authority’s fiscal year. Such expenditures are 
recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for 
State and Local and Governments, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. In accordance with the Uniform Guidance, the Authority did not apply or use the 
10 percent de minimis cost rate as defined by the Uniform Guidance for the period ending June 30, 2017.   
 
 
Loan and loan guarantees: The Authority has no loans or loan guarantees.   
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 
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Section I 
 Summary of Auditor’s Results 

      

       
 1. Financial Statements       
       

Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial 
statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP: 

 Unmodified    

       
  Internal control over financial reporting:       
       
   Material weakness(es) identified?      Yes  X No 
       
   Significant deficiency(ies) identified?       
        Yes  X None Reported 
       
  Noncompliance material to financial       
   statements noted?   Yes  X No 
       
 2. Federal Awards       
       
  Internal control over major federal program:       
       
   Material weakness(es) identified?   Yes  X No 
       
   Significant deficiency(ies) identified?       
        Yes   X None Reported 
  Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for       
   the major federal program:  Unmodified    
       
  Any audit findings disclosed that are required       
   to be reported in accordance with       
   Section 2 CFR 200.516 (a)   Yes  X No 
       
  Identification of major federal program:       
       
  CFDA Number(s)  Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
  20.205  Highway Planning and Construction 

 
   
  Dollar threshold used to distinguish between       
   type A and type B programs:  $ 796,990    
       
  Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  X Yes   No 
       
Section II 
 Financial Statement Findings 
 
 None reported 
 
Section III 
 Federal Award Finding and Questioned Costs 
 
 None reported
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Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 
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Prior-Year Federal Award Finding and Questioned Costs 
 

 None reported 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over  
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters  
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in  

Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority  
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Central Texas 
Regional Mobility Authority (the Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2017.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weakness 
may exist that have not been identified.  
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, grant agreements, and the Public Funds Investment Act, noncompliance with which could have 
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instance of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards or the Public Funds 
Investment Act.  
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Purpose of This Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Austin, Texas 
September 26, 2017 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major State 
Program, Report on Internal Control Over Compliance and Report 

on Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards Required by the 
State of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards 

 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority  
 
 
Report on Compliance for the Major State Program 
We have audited Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority’s (the Authority) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the state of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards (UGMS) 
that could have a direct and material effect on the Authority’s major State program for the year ended 
June 30, 2017. The Authority’s major state program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results 
section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility  
Management is responsible for compliance with state statutes, regulations, contracts and terms and 
conditions of its state awards applicable to its state programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Authority’s major state program based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States and the UGMS. Those standards and the UGMS require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances.  
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major state 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance.  

 
Opinion on the Major State Program 
In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the major state program for the year 
ended June 30, 2017.  
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with the requirements 
that could have a direct and material effect on the major state program to determine the auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for the major state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the UGMS, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not 
be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 
above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
UGMS. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards Required by the State of Texas Uniform 
Grant Management Standards 
We have audited the financial statements of the Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic 
financial statements. We have issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2017, which contained 
an unmodified opinion on those basic financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose 
of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures 
of state awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the UGMS and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of State 
Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 

 
Austin, Texas 
September 26, 2017 
 



 

5 

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority

Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Pass
Through to State

State Grantor/Program Title State Grant Award Number Subrecipients Expenditures 
Texas Department of Transportation:

MoPac South Intersections (Loop 1: from Davis 
to LaCrosse) CSJ 3136-01-015 -$                    25,544  $            

SH 45SW Toll Project CSJ 1200-06-004; 1200-07-001 -                     16,220,897         
183N Advance Funding Agreement CSJ 0151-05-102 -                     14,143                
US290W Scenic Brook to Joe Tanner Grant CSJ 0113-08-060 -                     83,404                
MoPac Improvement Project CSJ 3136-01-107 -                     5,183,358           
MoPac South Project Environmental Assessment CSJ 3136-01-176 -                     658,713              
Highway Planning and Construction—183 and 

183A Intersections CSJ 0151-04-066 -                     30,000                
Highway Planning and Construction—US290W 

Multi. Projects Grant CSJ 0265-01-080 -                     21,621                
Highway Planning and Construction—HERO Project CSJ 0914-00-358; 0914-00-361 -                     272,571              
Highway Research and Development—Ridesharing CSJ 0914-00-373 -                     950                     

Total state expenditures -$                    22,511,201  $     

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting entity: The Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards (the Schedule) includes the activity of 
all state programs administered by Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (the Authority). Because this 
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is not intended to, and 
does not, present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the Authority.  

 
Basis of presentation: The Schedule presents total state awards expended for each individual program 
in accordance with the Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards. 
 
Basis of accounting: The expenditures for each of the state financial assistance programs are 
presented on the accrual basis of accounting for the Authority’s fiscal year. Such expenditures are 
recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for 
State and Local and Governments, or the cost principles contained in the Texas Uniform Grant 
Management Standards, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for State Awards, wherein certain types 
of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
 
Loan and loan guarantees: The Authority has no loan or loan guarantees.  
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Section I 
Summary of Auditor’s Results 

      

       
 1. Financial Statements       
       

 Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial  
statements were presented in accordance with GAAP: 

 
Unmodified 

   

       
  Internal control over financial reporting:       
       
   Material weakness(es) identified?      Yes  X No 
       
   Significant deficiency(ies) identified?    Yes  X None Reported 
       
  Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?   Yes  X No 
       
 2. State Awards       
       
  Internal control over major state program:       
       
   Material weakness(es) identified?   Yes  X No 
       
   Significant deficiency(ies) identified?       
        Yes   X None Reported 
  Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for the        
   major state program:  Unmodified    
       
  Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be       
   reported in accordance with the State of Texas       
   Single Audit Circular   Yes  X No 
       
  Identification of major state program:       
       
  State Award Number(s)  Name of State Program or Cluster 

CSJ 1200-06-004 and CSJ 1200-07-001  SH 45SW Toll Project 

  Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and       
   type B programs:  $ 750,000    
       
  Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  X Yes   No 
       

Section II  
Financial Statement Findings 

 
 None reported 

 
Section III   

State Award Finding and Questioned Costs 
 

None reported 
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Prior Year State Award Finding and Questioned Costs 
 

None reported 
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